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FERNEERAA

Suncorp Technologies Limited

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFE®RE

On behalf of the board of directors (the "Board” or
"Directors”) of Suncorp Technologies Limited (the
“Company”), | present to you the annual report of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2008.

INTRODUCTION

The results for the year 2008 reflect the efforts of the Company
to restructure its operations including the closure of a number
of loss making subsidiaries.

The Group has achieved a substantial downsizing in terms
of headcount and costs. The Group continues to provide
manufacturing services.

Taking the year as a whole, all areas of expenses have been
substantially reduced and | am pleased to report a net profit.
This has been achieved also as a result of the aforementioned
closure of several subsidiaries.

OPERATING PERFORMANCE

Revenue was down approximately 80% to approximately
HK$220 million as compared to approximately HK$1,116
million for the year 2007. Gross profit was down approximately
83% to approximately HK$10 million as compared to
approximately HK$58 million for the year 2007. Operating
expenses were down approximately 49% to approximately
HK$41 million as compared to approximately HK$80 million for
2007.

The resultant net profit was approximately HK$79 million as
compared to a net loss of approximately HK$386 million for
2007.
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OPERATING PERFORMANCE (continued)

During the year under review, the Group placed the following REBROBEEFESREN N BRE
convertible loan notes:

Date of
announcements

D B

18 December 2007
and 31 March
2008

ZTTLF
+ZRA+N\BR
—TENF
=ZR=1+—H

Description

R

The convertible notes

in an aggregate
principal amount

of HK$67,900,000

have been placed, on

a best effort basis,

to not less than 6
independent placees.
Upon full conversion

of the convertible

notes at HK$0.10 per
conversion share, a total
of 679,000,000 new
conversion shares will be
issued.

K& #5/67,900,000
BT RRRREEL
RENEERET D
RABBULERA - B7]
BRFE R R G R R
0.10/8 T2 BRI
B RARIERITELR
679,000,000 % 32 A% ik
e

Net proceeds
RERERE

HK$65,715,000
65,715,000% 7T

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

> |
FRE®RSE
EBER (H)
RER
Outstanding
principal
amount of
No. of new convertible loan
conversion notes at 31
shares issued December 2008
during the year R-ZBENF
Actual use of 2008 +=-A=t+-—H
proceeds R-ZBENE i RAEE 2
FiBREZ RITZHBRR TRREREEZ
ERRAE RAEE b X
Fully utilised 493,000,000  HK$18,600,000
as general 18,600,000/ 7T

working capital
of the Group

PURIERE&E
Z—REEESR
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FERNEERAA

Suncorp Technologies Limited

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFE®RE

OPERATING PERFORMANCE (continued)

Date of
announcements

D B

25 July 2008 and 2

October 2008
—TENE
tAZTRERR
—TTNF
+AZH

Description

BR

The fully underwritten
bonds in an aggregate
principal amount of
HK$50,000,000 have
been placed by, on

a fully underwritten
basis, to not less than

6 independent placees.
Upon full conversion of
the fully underwritten
bonds at HK$0.10 per
conversion share, a total
of 500,000,000 new
conversion shares will be
issued.

A& #% 550,000,000
BT EERHEFDE
BREEARHEEERE T
PRABEIULREA - &
Y BHEFEERER
BR170.107 7T BRER
B AREHETA R
500,000,000 ¥7#2A% ik
e

Net proceeds
FEREFE
HK$48,424,000
48,424,000 7T

EBERE(R)

Actual use of
proceeds
Fi8RIEZ
ERRE

Fully utilised

as general
working capital
of the Group
2HRIEREE
L REEER

Outstanding
principal
amount of

No. of new convertible loan

conversion
shares issued
during the year
2008
RZBEN\E
BITZHER
RO#HE

Nil

<

notes at 31
December 2008
R-ZBENF
+=A=1+-H
e RAEE 2

TREENREZ

x28

HK$50,000,000
50,000,000/ 7T



OPERATING PERFORMANCE (continued)

Date of
announcements

DA A
25 July 2008 and

16 December 2008

=%
+AZ+%H
K
“2TNE
+=ZA+XAH

Description

BR

The best effort bonds
in an aggregate
principal amount of
HK$13,620,000 have
been placed, on a best
effort basis, to not less
than 6 independent
placees. Upon full
conversion of the best
effort bonds at HK$0.10
per conversion share, a

total of 136,200,000 new

conversion shares will be
issued.

K& 8% A13,620,000%
TLENEFEREEN
EREETIORAEHE
UERA - ERNEFE
BRARR710.10BT 2
EREHRK - AARH
%174 #£136,200,000%
AR

Net proceeds
FEBRERE
HK$13,620,000
13,620,000/ 7T

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

h =+

FRE®RSE
EBRE(E)

No. of new Outstanding
conversion convertible
shares issued  bonds as at 31
during the year December 2008
Actual use of 2008 R-BEENE
proceeds R=-EEN\F +ZA=t-H
FrEREZ BITZHBR HARITEZ
ERAE ROHE TRRES
Fully utilised 136,200,000 Nil
as general =

working capital
of the Group

2HRIEREE
2-ETAS
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FERNEERAA

Suncorp Technologies Limited

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFE®RE

PROSPECTS

The Board will continue to take a prudent risk aversive
approach in managing the financial affairs of the Group with a
view to maintaining profitability.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to thank our customers, suppliers and staff for their continued
support, and to assure shareholders and bondholders that we
will work tirelessly to improve the Company’s performance.

On behalf of the Board

Dato’ Dr. Wong Sin Just
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 April 2009
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group recorded
a turnover of approximately HK$220 million which represents
a decrease of approximately 80% as compared to the
corresponding figure for the year ended 31 December 2007.
The gross profit for the year under review was approximately
HK$10 million as compared to approximately HK$58 million for
the previous year. Our operating profit was negatively impacted
due to the change in business structure during the year: (i) no
more trading activities with the jointly controlled entity since
April 2008; and (i) the new assembly service business started
in Meizhou, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") at the
beginning of the year. Finance costs increased by approximately
13% to approximately HK$17 million, due mainly to the
recognition of the effective interest expense on the convertible
loan notes. The turnover, gross profit and net loss of the new
assembly service business in Meizhou for the year ended 31
December 2008 are set out as below:-

EEE®WULR DN

BE

E@_ﬂ)\ﬂr A=Z+—RHLEE-
REBE S E 5 4220,000,000% 7T
RBEE-_TELF+-_A=+—HLHF
EZAMEBEFTHELA80% BEFEZ
E F #9 £10,000,0005% T tfirﬁu
#) 558,000,000/ Tt ° $ EEZKE)
ﬂliﬁq%%& BT IJ’EEWB'
EHREE R afﬁ/wmm@
A““TEE 25 E R RGN FHE
hEARKEME ([HE])ENFERFTE
FeAR 5 575 - A A AL MAI3%EL
17,000,000 7T * T E AN ER AT 2K
EREBRZERFERE - (LR 18N
MERERBEBRBE-_ZZENEF+=
A=+ BLEFEZEEE  EFNRB
BFEET

2008
(unaudited)
(REER)
HK$'000
FTHET
Turnover S 36,524
Gross profit EN 3,149
Net loss ERFEE 3,238
P PN
SEGMENTAL INFORMATION AEER
Turnover by Product REmDBZERHE
2008 2007
HK$ million %  HK$ million %
BEBETT BEETT
DECT DECT 165 75.3 821 73.6
VolP VolP 12 5.5 274 24.5
Corded telephone BiRE; 4 1.7 8 0.7
Others Hith 39 17.5 13 1.2
Total waet

220

100 1,116 100
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FERNEERAA

Suncorp Technologies Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE®LR DM

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

Turnover by Product (continued)

All of the Group’s turnover and contribution to results were
derived from the design, manufacture and sale and provision
of assembly services of telephones and related equipment. Our
existing product range includes DECT, VoIP and other telecom
products. DECT products accounted for approximately 75.3%
of our turnover for the year under review, up 1.7% from the
previous year. During the year, sales of VolP accounted for
approximately 5.5% and the assembly service accounted for
approximately 17.5% of the Group’s turnover.

Our customer base continues to comprise prime telecom
operating companies and telecom product distributors in
Europe and Asia Pacific. Customers in European countries
accounted for approximately HK$174 million and in Asia Pacific
region and other countries accounted for approximately HK$46
million of the Group's turnover respectively.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Current assets RBEE
Current liabilities TEAE
Current ratio VI

The decrease in current ratio was mainly due to the conversion
options embedded in the convertible loan notes which are
included under current liabilities.

At 31 December 2008, the Group had cash on hand
of approximately HK$5 million, net current liabilities of
approximately HK$92 million, total assets of approximately
HK$20 million and shareholders’ deficit of approximately
HK$124 million.

PEER #)
REROIEZEXE (&)
FEASEZEEEREEER  HUXE
BEkEERE RS RERBEEN
RRERERE AEEREEMES
B EDECT * VolP R E i E F &= dn © DECT
EnGASENBFECEEEOA
753% BRE—FELEA1T% - FR -
VoIPZ SHE B AR B & ¥ FAI5.5% -
MR RBANE N EE & ETEL17.5% o

AEEZEFHEBERERNETERE
ZEEEHLERTINENERDHEE °
BNBERz2EFPALRAEBRTRY
174,000,000 L& %% M AEK&E
B R 2 & F BI% K 4146,000,000/8 7T

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THET
12,907 243,527
104,693 520,197
0.12 0.47

MBLETREIZERINARDEELZ
AR SRR IR 2 NER BB -

RZEENF+ZA=Z+—HB &
SEFAFEH £ 45,000,0008 T K
B & & 5% 492,000,000 L BEE
48 %8 4720,000,0007%8 7T & i% 3 & 41 40
124,000,000/ 7T °



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

(continued)

The Group's total bank borrowings, finance leases obligations,
advances drawn on trade receivables with insurance coverage
and advances drawn on bills receivable discounted with full
recourse at 31 December 2008 were approximately HK$1.6
million (2007: HK$199 million). The ratio of total bank
borrowings and finance leases obligations to total assets for
2007 and 2008 was as follows:

GEARING RATIO

Total assets BELE

Total bank borrowings, finance  R1TEE - MEMEET 2
leases obligations, advances E% EXCRERERES
drawn on trade receivables BB RBELHE
with insurance coverage and PEEREZ BRI
advances drawn on bills FERZBFNEE

receivable discounted
with full recourse
Ratio of total bank borrowings, R{7fEE - EHEBET 2

finance leases obligations, B ExXERREKRE S
advances drawn on trade RRzBFRRBELHE
receivables with insurance ZHEBREZERALE
coverage and advances drawn ~ ZEZBFMABEEEE
on bills receivable discounted BEZLE

with full recourse to total assets

No debt to equity ratio is available as the Group is in a negative
equity position.

EEE®WULR DN

RBEER Y BER (&)

R_BEENF+_A=+—H £A&£E
ZRITEE MEMEBETZEL B
TERRELRE R 2B R RELM
BEXHEBEBIERBREBE 2R
& H 451,600,008 (ZTTLF -
199,000,000 7C) - RZEFTLF R =
ZENF ROBEHPEREETZ
BEHENBERUAEEBBELERNT

EEARLE
2008 2007
HK$"000 HK$'000
Fax FHT
20,009 249,150
1,597 198,622
7.98% 79.7%

ARARBERRE RN - Fit 8%

REEHEERLE -
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Suncorp Technologies Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEWLR DM

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year ended 31 December 2008, no shares were
issued upon the exercise of share options by option holders.

During the year under review, the Group placed the following
convertible loan notes:

Date of

announcements  Description

N B R

18 December 2007  Placing of the three-year 0.5% coupon
and 31 March convertible notes in an aggregate

2008 principal amount of HK$67,900,000 was
“ZZ+F+-/ completed on 28 March 2008 pursuant
TNER to the terms of the placing agreement
—TTN\F dated 13 December 2007. The convertible
=“A=1+—H notes in an aggregate principal amount

of HK$67,900,000 have been placed

by SBI E2-Capital (HK) Limited, on a

best effort basis, to not less than 6
independent placees. Upon full conversion
of the convertible notes at HK$0.10 per
conversion share, a total of 679,000,000
new conversion shares will be issued.
BEA % 8% A67,900,0008 .2 =F
H0.5%ZERFHBEE-—SEREAS
AZETHETAT=HZEEHEN
EHR=ZZNF=A=+N\BEK

SBI E2-Capital (HK) Limited B8 & H &%
MRV RALBUARARERAELREE
67,900,000/ 702 AR » & AIAAR
FERERARKH0.108 T 2 BREH
R - RABHEETTE 2£679,000,0008%
B o

BARRRE

RBE-BENFT=A=+—ALE
B A AR AL BB
TSR -

ASEREEFEEREATARKE

RERE

Outstanding principal
No. of new  amount of convertible

conversion shares loan notes at 31
issued during December 2008
the year 2008 R-ZBENE

R-ZBENF +ZA=+-H
BiTzHaR iR EEZ
ROME FARRERFEZELH
493,000,000 HK$18,600,000
18,600,000/



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL STRUCTURE (continued)

Date of
announcements

D B

25 July 2008 and 2
October 2008
“TENFLA
“t+HEK
—TTNF
+AZH

Description

R

Placing of the three-year 0.5% coupon
fully underwritten bonds in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$50,000,000 was
completed on 2 October 2008 pursuant to
the terms of the fully underwritten placing
agreement dated 11 July 2008. The fully
underwritten bonds in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$50,000,000 have
been placed by Tanrich Capital Limited,

on a fully underwritten basis, to not less
than 6 independent placees. Upon full
conversion of the fully underwritten bonds
at HK$0.10 per conversion share, a total
of 500,000,000 new conversion shares
will be issued.

L& 7R & 4% /50,000,000 T2 =5F
H05%RE2EBHEF—FEREA
HAZEZ\FLA+-HZ2ABHE
ERENERR_TZN\FTAZHR
o BTRERRARIE REARHELE
APPRABBLARARERSBER
50,000,000 T2 2 EBHES - E2E
BIEEFRERARH0.108 T2 B
BB - ARABEITA H500,000,000
BT

T EE

BRARAE (8)

No. of new
conversion shares
issued during

the year 2008
RZBENE
BITZHBR
ROHA

Nil
g

WAl R oo A

Outstanding principal
amount of convertible
loan notes at 31
December 2008
R-BENE
+=A=t+-H

R EEZ
TRRERREZEALHE

HK$50,000,000
50,000,000/ 7T

ZEENFEER
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FERNEERAA

Suncorp Technologies Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEE®WILR DM

CAPITAL STRUCTURE (continued)

Date of
announcements

D B

25 July 2008

and 16 December
2008

—TTEN\EF
tAZTHBR
“TEN\F+ZHA
+7<H

Description

R

Placing of the three-year 0.5% coupon
best effort bonds in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$13,620,000 was completed
on 16 December 2008 pursuant to the
terms of the best effort placing agreement
dated 11 July 2008. The best effort

bonds in an aggregate principal amount
of HK$13,620,000 have been placed by
Tanrich Capital Limited, on a best effort
basis, to not less than 6 independent
placees. Upon full conversion of the best
effort bonds at HK$0.10 per conversion
share, a total of 136,200,000 new
conversion shares will be issued.

RERS B A13,620,0008T 2 =FH
05%REENEF—FERBEAHA-F
ZNELAT-RZENEERENER
RZZBENETZAT/RBMK  FHRE
BRERRAIERENEERNIPR A LE
VAR AREREH% 513,620,000 T
ZENEF - ARNEBEHFRERERRD
0108 T BRABBUAR - RARRELT
£3£136,200,000 83T ARAR 17 ©

BRARAE (8)

No. of new
conversion shares
issued during

the year 2008
RZBENE
BITZHBR
ROHA

136,200,000

Outstanding principal
amount of convertible
loan notes at 31
December 2008
R-BENE
+=A=t+-H

R EEZ
TRRERREZEALHE

Nil
g



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EXCHANGE RATE

All sales in the current year were denominated in US dollars
and RMB, whilst the majority of the Group’s expenses were
denominated in EUR, RMB and HK dollars.

INVESTMENTS

There were no material acquisitions of subsidiaries and
associated companies during the year.

On 25 July 2008, the Board announced that H B Electronics
(China) Limited (the “Purchaser”), an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a legally binding
memorandum of undertaking ("“MOU") with ZIIH =S EH
R~ &) (transliterated as Shenzhen Jiahao Investment Company
Limited) (the “Vendor”) on 22 July 2008, pursuant to which
the Purchaser agreed to acquire and the Vendor agreed to sell
the RMB3,200,000 in the registered and paid up capital of
Shenzhen Guo Wei Electronics Co., Ltd., representing 5% of
the entire registered and paid up capital of Shenzhen Guo Wei
Electronics Co., Ltd. for a consideration of RMB3,200,000.

On 10 October 2008, the Board announced that as there
had been a change in the market condition, after arm’s
length negotiations, the parties to the MOU entered into the
termination agreement (the “Termination Agreement”) on
9 October 2008 to terminate the MOU with immediate effect.
Pursuant to the MOU, no deposit was paid by the Purchaser
to the Vendor and under the Termination Agreement, the
Purchaser was not required to make any compensation payment
to the Vendor. The Directors consider the terms and conditions
of the Termination Agreement are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

EEE®WULR DN

EE

REERAZAMBBEGURTRARE
DIME - MANK B2 B SXKER D AR »
ARERATIIE

RE

REAFEA  FEBELEETHE QA
KBS REl 2 ERKHE -

R-_ZZN\E+tA-+hB EEe5
o HEET (PE)BRAR(TER]
ApelzBBE2ENBAR) BRIIT
EEREBRAGTEADRZZZZN
FLAZ+-HIVEZBORNZ2E
ik ([E#]) Bt EAREWE
MEAREHEFRIIBERETER AR
Z et ka2 E AR AR 3,200,0007T
BRINBHEEFERATZ MR
RIRAZ5% KB AAKRES200,000
3L o

R_TEN\FTATH EZEEMH-
HRTMRBE  BREINETELRF
ERAR_ZTN\FTANBFTLLL
e (TR ]) AR 4% E B 8% o
BEATS  BEHNLTEREIXNES -
MBBEEILHE - BHBERENFL
EREE -EZRA RIEHEZER
FEHBRATEE  IFAARRFNRK
RZBEMN -
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Suncorp Technologies Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE®LR DM

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

On 28 February 2007, the Company was served with an
Amended Writ issued and filed by Uniden Corporation
(“Uniden”) and Uniden Hong Kong Limited (“Uniden HK")
on 1 February 2007 against the Company, SunCorp Partners
Limited and certain of the Company’'s existing and former
Directors, alleging that certain misrepresentations had been
made by the Company and certain of its existing and former
Directors, and that the Company had breached the warranties
of the subscription agreement, and the terms of the business
alliance agreement and the master production agreement. On
the basis of these allegations, Uniden sought, inter alia, (i) a
recession of the subscription agreement, pursuant to which
Uniden HK acquired 82,000,000 new shares in the capital of
the Company, and the consequential return of the relevant
subscription money of approximately HK$143,500,000; (ii)
damages for misrepresentation or breach of warranty; (iii)
damages for breach of the business alliance agreement and the
master production agreement; and (iv) the legal costs of this
action, plus interest.

On 6 February 2007 and 20 March 2007, the Company issued
announcements in relation to these legal proceedings and the
termination by the Company of the business alliance agreement
and the master production agreement. The Directors strongly
refute and intend to vigorously contest the allegations made by
Uniden and Uniden HK, and are of the opinion, having taken
legal advice, that the action can be successfully defended.

On 2 August 2007, the Company served a defense and a
counterclaim against Uniden and Uniden HK for damages of
approximately HK$354,000,000 (plus interest) based on the
breaches by Uniden and Uniden HK of the terms of the master
production agreement and the business alliance agreement.
Uniden served its reply and defence to the counterclaim on
13 November 2007. Up to the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements, the Court has not yet laid
down a timetable for the next stages of the proceedings.

FREE

R-ET+E-_A-+N\B KAQAE
#ZUniden Corporation ([Uniden]) &
Uniden Hong Kong Limited ([ Uniden
HK)RZZEZT+F-_A—HAARA
SunCorp Partners Limited & N2 F1%&E T
BAERMEESHEL RFEZLER]
B2 EEARAREETRAEKA
FTEFEEETRERL  URARQF]
EERRBEWMAZRELB R B W
EREEBEHZCBER - ERZEE
% UnidenBX (EF E#) (VHEE B
Uniden HK!fz B£82,000,0008% & 2 & i%
R 2 # R0 2 REE IR B AR R
f8 A% X #7143,500,000/ 7T © (i)t K BB
Mk RRBREEEERE (FER
HEBREREREEEHRERESER
B R(VBEBHEBEETH ZEEZER
PARH B,

NZEE+F-ANBE-_ZEZS+F=
AZ+H ARt EEEFRRE
NEKRILZEEBEREREELE R &
BHAM EFHNRBEREBEGR
UnidenXUniden HKIE H Z 3545 » I
BPRERERBARAEHEERTHIE
X I s o

RZZEZE+FNAZH ARFARE
Uniden&Uniden HKZ R £ E @2 & X
7 SE B BB 1 i 2 16 BN AKX AE £ ¥ Uniden
KUniden HKZ B ERRB R &KX
BERE{E4354,000,0007 T (EFIE) °
UnidenRZEZE+F+—AT=H&EE
HARBRZEOERNHEE - EEARR
MM REE B AR A RET
HT—BERFACKRBE-



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at 31 December 2008, there was no capital commitment for
expenditure in respect of acquisition of intangible assets (2007:
HK$2,449,000) and plant and machinery (2007: HK$1,061,000)
which was contracted for but not provided for in the financial
statements, respectively.

EMPLOYEES

The Group's emolument policies are formulated on the
performance of employees with reference to the market
condition. The Board may exercise its discretion to grant
share options to the executive Directors and employees as an
incentive to their contribution to the Group. During the year
under review, no share options had been granted by the Group
to the employees in accordance with the share option scheme.

EEE®WULR DN

BRERE

R_EENF+_A=+—H &R
BUERLEE (ZTTHF 2,449,000
BT)RBERZBEB(ZETLF:
1,061,000/ 7T) 2 B KA R B 5 #R
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Suncorp Technologies Limited

CORPORATE INFORMATION
A

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

Mr. Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON
Mr. ZHU Guangping
Mr. CHEUNG Chi Wai

Non-executive Directors:

Dato’ Dr. WONG Sin Just (Chairman)
Mr. LEUNG Shek Kong
Mr. SONG Shufa

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Dr. HUI Ka Wah Ronnie, JP
Mr. HO Kwan Tat
Mr. WONG Kean Li

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. CHEUNG Chung Wai, Billy

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISORS

Hong Kong:

Morrison & Foerster
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Conyers Dill & Pearman

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
United Commercial Bank
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FERNEERAA

Suncorp Technologies Limited

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS
ESHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON, aged 59, is responsible
for the Group’s overall marketing and product development
strategy. He is a fellow of the Chartered Institute of Marketing.

ZHU Guangping, aged 42, is currently the general manager of
Shenzhen Guo Wei Electronics Co., Ltd. ("Guo Wei"”), a joint
venture established in the PRC with limited liability in which
the Company holds 46% equity interest thereof through a
wholly owned subsidiary. Mr. Zhu holds a Bachelor Degree in
engineering from Jilin University of Technology, the PRC.

CHEUNG Chi Wai, aged 42, is responsible for the engineering
and research and development of the Group. Mr. Cheung has
been working in the telecommunications industry for 20 years.
He was educated in Hong Kong and has a Bachelor of Science
degree in Electronic Engineering, a Master of Philosophy
degree in High Frequency Circuit Design and a Master of
Business Administration degree in Information Technology.
He is a Chartered Engineer and a member of the Institute of
Engineering and Technology.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dato’ Dr. WONG Sin Just, aged 43, was re-designated as
Non-executive Chairman and Director of the Company in April
2008. He was first appointed as Executive Director of the
Company in September 2007 and was the Executive Chairman
of the Company immediately before the re-designation.
Dr. Wong possesses over 20 years of accounting, investment
banking and venture capital experience. He held senior
positions with a number of premier international investment
banks prior to joining the Company. Dr. Wong is currently the
Executive Chairman of SBI E2-Capital Asia Securities Pte Ltd as
well as the Non-execuive Director of China Renji Medical Group
Limited and the Independent Non-executive Director of China.
com Inc., Capital Strategic Investment Limited and China Zenith
Chemical Group Limited (all are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange")), the Non-
Executive Chairman of Westminster Travel Limited (listed on
Singapore Exchange) and the Non-Independent Non-executive
Director of Intelligent Edge Technologies Berhad (listed on the
Malaysia MESDAQ). He was the Executive Co-Chairman of
CIAM Group Limited (formerly E2-Capital (Holdings) Limited,
listed on the Stock Exchange) up to 31 May 2008. He is
involved in various social and charitable organizations in Hong
Kong and China and is the Chairman of the General Donations
and Special Events Committee of The Community Chest of
Hong Kong and holds a Bachelor Degree in Engineering from
the University of London, England.

LEUNG Shek Kong, aged 51, is responsible for the PRC
operation of the Group. He has more than 32 years’ experience
in the electronics industry.

SONG Shufa, aged 43, is currently responsible for the
purchasing and logistic in Guo Wei and he does not receive any
remuneration from Guo Wei. Mr. Song has been working in
electronics industry for 21 years and held senior management
positions with a number of premier electronics companies in
the PRC prior to joining Guo Wei. Mr. Song holds a Bachelor
of Science from Nankai University, the PRC and is a Chartered
Engineer in the PRC.
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FERNEERAA

Suncorp Technologies Limited

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS
ESHE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. HUI Ka Wah, Ronnie, JP, aged 45, graduated from the
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Medicine and
Bachelor of Surgery and holds the Diploma of Child Health at
Royal College of Physicians & Surgeons in Ireland and at Royal
College of Physicians & Surgeons of Glasgow. He is a member
of the Royal College of Physicians of the United Kingdom,
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine
(Paediatrics) and the Hong Kong College of Paediatricians.
He has been practicing as a registered medical practitioner in
Hong Kong since 1987 and has been registered as Specialist
in Pediatrics since 2001. He is a CFA (Chartered Financial
Analyst) Charterholder and also holds the degree of Master of
Business Administration conferred by Universitas 21 Global.
Dr. Hui is the Head of Corporate Investment of Group Sense
(International) Limited and Corporate Marketing Director of
Quam Securities Limited. Dr. Hui is the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of Core Healthcare Investment Holdings
Limited as well as the Executive Director of Town Health
International Holdings Company Limited and Hong Kong Health
Check and Laboratory Holdings Company Limited and the
Independent Non-executive Director of Winbox International
(Holdings) Limited (all are listed on the Stock Exchange). Dr.
Hui was the Independent Non-executive Director of CIAM
Group Limited (formerly E2-Capital (Holdings) Limited) up to 1
July 2008 and CASH Financial Services Group Limited up to 27
October 2008 (all are listed on the Stock Exchange).

HO Kwan Tat, aged 44, is a practicing Certified Public
Accountant in Hong Kong and is a director of a CPA firm. He
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Ho has extensive experience in accounting
and audit. Mr. Ho is the Independent Non-executive Director
of Midland IC&I Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange). He
was the Independent Non-executive Director of CIAM Group
Limited (formerly E2-Capital (Holdings) Limited) up to 1 July
2008 and The Sun’s Group Limited up to 14 April 2008 (all are
listed on the Stock Exchange).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

WONG Kean Li, aged 38, is the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of an Internet and software development company.
He holds a Master of Arts degree in Law from Cambridge
University, England. He was the President and Executive
Director of China Renji Medical Group Limited up to 22 May
2008, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Prior to that,
he was the Vice President, business development of Hongkong.
com Corporation and senior counsel and business development
director of China.com Corporation, after having been a lawyer
with the international law firm Clifford Chance where he
specialised in China law as well as corporate and Internet/
technology matters. Mr. Wong is also the Non-executive Vice
Chairman of Intelligent Edge Technologies Berhad, a company
listed on the Malaysia MESDAQ.
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FERNEERAA

Suncorp Technologies Limited

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
LEBEARS

The Board of the Company is pleased to present this Corporate
Government Report together with annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2008.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to high standards of good
corporate governance practices and procedures. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasize a quality
Board, sound internal control, transparency, independence and
accountability to all shareholders.

Throughout the financial year of 2008, the Group had applied
the principles as set out in the Code of Corporate Governance
Practices (the "CG Code"”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) unless otherwise
stated which in the opinion of the Board are not appropriate to
follow.

The Company conducts periodic review on its corporate
governance practices to ensure that the Company can meet the
requirements of the CG Code on an on-going basis. The key
corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
are summarized as below:

BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES

The Board is mandated with promoting the success of the
Company by providing leadership and supervising control of
the business of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the Company has the following
members on the Board:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON
Mr. ZHU Guangping
Mr. CHEUNG Chi Wai
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES
(continued)

Non-executive Directors:

Dato’ Dr. WONG Sin Just (Chairman)
Mr. LEUNG Shek Kong
Mr. SONG Shufa

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs"):

Dr. HUI Ka Wah Ronnie, JP
Mr. HO Kwan Tat
Mr. WONG Kean Li

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages
18 to 21 of this Annual Report.

Under the Listing Rules, every listed issuer is required to
have at least three INEDs, at least one of whom must have
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The number of INEDs has met
the requirement of the Listing Rules and represented one third
of the total Board members. Further more than one of them
have the appropriate professional qualifications in accounting
or related financial management expertise.

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to the requirement of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all INEDs meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of
the guidelines. Regular review will be made on the Board
composition to ensure the Company has a balance of skills,
expertise and experience appropriate for the requirements of
the business of the Company.
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FERNEERAA

Suncorp Technologies Limited

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
LEBEARS

BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES
(continued)

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company follows a formal and transparent procedure for
the appointment of new Directors to the Board. The Board
will consider on a regular basis whether necessary changes are
needed in respect of the structure, size and composition of the
Board and to identify suitably qualified candidates if there is
such a need. In accordance with the existing Bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws”), every newly appointed Director
shall hold office till the next following general meeting of
the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
meeting.

According to the Bye-laws, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at least once every
three years. For the avoidance of doubt, all Directors, including
the Chairman of the Board, shall be subject to retirement by
rotation.

Non-Executive Directors (Deviation from Code
Provision A.4.1)

Pursuant to Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term
subject to re-election. None of the existing non-executive
Directors and INEDs are engaged on specific term, and it
constituted a deviation of Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG
Code. However all Directors, including non-executive Directors
and INEDs are subject to retirement by rotation at each annual
general meeting at least once every three years under the Bye-
laws. In the circumstances, the Board considers that the present
practice has already addressed the concerns of the CG Code in
this respect.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES

(continued)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Numbers of Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

During the financial year of 2008 under review, thirteen board
meetings were held and the attendance of each Director at the

tEERRE
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R-ZET\FOEMBEE EFEH
TTT=ZRE®% REZZHERILW

Board meetings was as follows: T
Attendance/
Number of Board meetings
HEE/
Name of Directors: EEng EZEgERY
Dato’ Dr. WONG Sin Just (Note 1) SEERERL (WET) 13/13
Mr. Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATONSE A& 12/13
Mr. ZHU Guangping (Note 2) REFSEE(HF2) 212
Mr. CHEUNG Chi Wai REERLE 12/13
Mr. LEUNG Shek Kong (Note 3) RGN FEE (M iE3) 13/13
Mr. MAK Chee Bun (Note 4) BHELE (Hit4) 9/13
Dr. HUI Ka Wah Ronnie AR E 12/13
Mr. HO Kwan Tat (Note 5) EELE (HiE5) 6/9
Mr. WONG Kean Li (Note 6) HEBLA (W it6) 3/5
Mr. Peter Francis AMOUR (Note 7) BmELE (HiE7) 0/0
Mr. Thomas CHIA (Note 8) B VL (Hi78) 11
Mr. CHAN Kam Tim (Note 9) BRERIN S 4 (f129) 5/5
Mr. Edward Hungerford Edward Hungerford
MILWARD-OLIVER (Note 10) MILWARD-OLIVERSE & (#77£10) 6/6
Notes: Mt -
1, Dato’ Dr. Wong Sin Just was re-designated as a non-executive 1. SEERBEEIR _ZZN\FHA
Chairman and Director on 28 April 2008. THNBAERFRTERRES -
2. Mr. ZHU Guangping was appointed as an executive Director on 2. REFEERZZZNFNAZTR
26 August 2008. REZERBITES -
3. Mr. LEUNG Shek Kong was re-designated as a non-executive 3. REXFERZZEENENAZTR
Director on 26 August 2008. AAERFHITES -
4. Mr. MAK Chee Bun resigned as a non-executive Director on 24 4. ERELER_TTNF_A=+H

February 2009.

ABHEFRANTES -
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FERNEERAA

Suncorp Technologies Limited

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
LEBEARS

BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES
(continued)

Numbers of Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

59 Mr. HO Kwan Tat was appointed as an INED on 31 March
2008.

6. Mr. WONG Kean Li was appointed as an INED on 30 April
2008.

7. Mr. Peter Francis AMOUR resigned as an executive Director on
4 March 2008.

8. Mr. Thomas CHIA resigned as an INED on 31 March 2008.

9. Mr. CHAN Kam Tim resigned as a non-executive Director on 7
April 2008.

10. Mr. Edward Hungerford MILWARD-OLIVER resigned as an INED
on 28 April 2008.

Practices and Conduct of Board Meetings

The Board conducts meeting on a regular basis and on an ad
hoc basis. The Bye-laws allows Board meetings to be conducted
by means of telephones or other communications equipment
and any resolutions to be passed by way of written resolutions
circulated to and signed by all Directors from time to time
when necessary unless such as are temporarily unable to act
through ill-health or disability.

At least 14 days’ notice for regular Board meetings and
reasonable notice for non-reqular Board meetings are given
to all Directors so as to ensure that each of them had an
opportunity to attend the meetings. The Company Secretary
assists the Chairman in preparing the agenda for meetings and
ensures that all applicable rules and regulations are complied
with. The agenda and the accompanying Board papers are sent
in full to all Directors at least 3 days before the date of the
Board meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES
(continued)

Practices and Conduct of Board Meetings (continued)

After the meeting, draft minutes of the Board meeting are
circulated to all Directors for their comment before execution
and approval. All Board minutes are kept by the Company
Secretary and available for inspection at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice given by the Directors. Every Director is
entitled to have access to Board papers and related materials
and has access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Board is led by the non-executive Chairman and due to the
scale of the operation, the Board opines that it is not necessary
to appoint a Chief Executive Officer and daily operation of the
Group is delegated to executive Directors, department heads
and various committees.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee for overseeing particular aspect of
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company
are established with clearly defined written terms of reference
which set out the scope and authorities of the respective
committee. The terms of reference are available to shareholders
for inspection at the principal place of business of the
Company and on the Company’s website. Copies of minutes of
all meetings and resolutions of the committees, which are kept
by the Company Secretary, are circulated to all Board members
and the committees are required to report back to the Board
on their decision and recommendations where appropriate.
The procedures and arrangements for a Board meeting, as
mentioned in the section “Practices and Conduct of Board
Meetings” above, also apply to the operation of the committee
meetings.
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Suncorp Technologies Limited

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
LEEARE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

As at the date of this report, the members of the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee are:

Audit Committee

Dr. HUI Ka Wah Ronnie, JP (Chairman)
Mr. HO Kwan Tat
Dato’ Dr. WONG Sin Just

Remuneration Committee

Mr. HO Kwan Tat (Chairman)
Dato’ Dr. WONG Sin Just

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee provides an important link between
Board and the Company’s auditors in matters coming within
the scope of the audit of the Company. The Audit Committee
was established in March 2000 and currently consists of three
members, of whom are two INEDs and one non-executive
Director.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the
appointment of auditors on an annual basis including a review
of the audit scope and the audit fees; ensuring the objectivity
and independence of the auditors, meeting with the auditors
to discuss issues arising from the final audit and any matters
the auditors suggest to discuss; reviewing the sufficiency and
effectiveness of the internal controls; reviewing the annual
and interim report in accordance with the accounting polices
and practices and relevant accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and the legal requirements; serving as a focal point for
communication between other Directors and the auditors in
respect of the duties relating to financial reporting.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and has access to independent professional
advice according to the Company'’s policy when necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued) EEZEE (E)
Audit Committee (continued) ENZEEE (8)
During the financial year of 2008 under review, two committee R_EZEN\FOENBFE ZES8

meetings were held and the attendance of each committee
member at the committee meeting was as follows:

ﬂ'TﬁﬁlA%ﬂu%

KERBZHEBRIOT

Attendance/

Number of Committee

meetings attended

ﬁ!ﬁfﬁ/
Name of Committee members ZEEHRENR SR ZESEERE
Dr. HUI Ka Wah Ronnie AREEAE 212
Mr. HO Kwan Tat (Note 1) MEELENFT) 2/2
Dato’ Dr. WONG Sin Just (Note 2) SEEREEL (HiH2) 171
Mr. Thomas CHIA (Note 3) BV (M 5E3) 0/0
Mr. CHAN Kam Tim (Note 4) PBRERN LA (B ita) 0/0
Mr. Edward Hungerford Edward Hungerford
MILWARD-OLIVER (Note 5) MILWARD-OLIVERSE 4 (47725) 1/1
Notes: Bt
1, Mr. HO Kwan Tat was appointed as an Audit Committee 1. MBERER_TENEF=A="1—
member on 31 March 2008. FEZTABEZZEGKE -
2. Dato’ Dr. WONG Sin Just was appointed as an Audit 2. EEEREBIR-_ZEZTNERA
Committee member on 29 May 2008. TTNBEZEABRLZEENE -
3. Mr. Thomas CHIA resigned as an Audit Committee member on 3. ERNTEER_ZEENEF=A=1—
31 March 2008. ABEERZEENE -
4. Mr. CHAN Kam Tim resigned as an Audit Committee member 4. BREFTER_ZENENALAEH
on 7 April 2008. TEZZEGHE -
5. Mr. Edward Hungerford MILWARD-OLIVER resigned as an Audit 5. Edward Hungerford MILWARD-

Committee member on 28 April 2008.

OLVEREER ZZZNEFEMA =+ N\
HEBEITEZZEEKE -
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

During the committee meetings held in the financial year of
2008, the Audit Committee performed the work summarized
below:

- Reviewing the financial reports and results
announcement for the following financial period before
submission to the Board for approval:

- for the year ended 31 December 2007

- for six months ended 30 June 2008

- Reviewing the auditors’ independence and report
recommending to the Board for the re-appointment
of the external auditors at the 2008 annual general
meeting.

The announcement results of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2008 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established for the purposes
of ensuring there are formal and transparent procedures
for setting policies on the remuneration for the directors.
No Directors and executives can determine his/her own
remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice when necessary.

No meeting of Remuneration Committee was held during the
financial year of 2008.

EEZ82 (A)
EREEE (4)
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in preparing
the financial statements of the Group. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008,
the accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
have been adopted and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (which also include Statements
of Standard Accounting Practice and Interpretations) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the applicable laws were complied with. The Directors
believe that they have selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently, and made judgment and estimates
that are prudent and reasonable and have ensured the financial
statements are prepared on the going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external
auditors, Messrs. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng, are set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 46 to 50.

Internal Control System

The Board maintains a sound and effective internal control
system to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the
Company’s assets. The internal control system is designed
to provide reasonable assurance on the effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, reliability of financial and management
reporting, and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring an effective system
of internal controls which cover all material controls including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions.

CEBAREE

BEREE
B BE 4R

EERARERRAEENHERRZE
T -R/EBE_TETNF+_A=1—
BEFEZVBREBERMNEELR

SHRA VEBFEASHAAE
B BEBRBEREER(ERNBE
EREQHENRRB) URBERER -
EEHERSCHEREREREEZ
SHEER  URELBEEABEZHER
fEr WEBRMBEHRRESELEE
RS -

AREINEZEMBAESFMELMZ
ERETHN L ZBMBRSE ] F46E
50E e

NEEEIE A

ESERRREMARCABEZRR
NRERRZBRERARAZEE - N
BERRF 2R IRARERAK
MBS AR Z@ﬁk&aﬁ!@[#&u&
HRBERAEPI R REAERE

ESRARRABEZERRTZEN
BFRIEREMBEREE  BREME -
LENEEEGIALEREEBAE -
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

External Auditors’ Remuneration

During the financial year of 2008, the remuneration paid to the
Company’'s former external auditors, Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu and the remuneration payable to the Company’s
existing external auditors, Messrs. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
were set out belows:

BMERZH ()

MEZEBE S
R-ZZEZN\FHREE  ENARRE]A
EINBREBEED s BRR T ST
ZHE  ARENAABREIMEZE
MEESTMEEHzMEHIMT :

Fees paid/payable to
external auditors

Services rendered for the Group m A K BR A2 R ENREMIPEZEMZER
HK$
AT
Audit services: BEZR
— Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu ?E@J =R gETRAT 100,413
~ HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Bl &gt A S5 AT 650,000
Non-audit services (Taxation and FEZRSG
professional services): (RIERBERY)
— Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu —EY e AER A QAT 144,100
— HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng B et EBEm 50,000
Total: st 944,513

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers the (the “Model
Code"”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own
code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transaction.
Based on specific enquiry of all the Directors, the Directors
have complied with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code throughout the financial year of 2008.

ESETRESREZEETA

RRABIE SR ETARBM S+ AE(L
METAEFETEFRXZOFETR)D
(BESFA]  FRAFBEHESET
ERRHZAIRTA - REHEEES
EHHEEREMA EER_FFTN
FHHTERETRETRAMAZLAT
% o
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board endavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and, in particular, use annual general meetings or
other general meetings to communicate with shareholders and
encourage their participation in such meetings.

At least 20 clear business days' notice for annual general
meeting and at least 10 clear business days’ notice for all other
general meeting are given to shareholders of the Company
before the meeting.

Details of poll voting procedures will be explained during the
proceedings of meetings and any questions from shareholders
regarding the voting by way of poll will be answered. Poll
results will be posted on the website of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited on the business day following the general
meeting.

To promote communication, the Company maintains website
at www.suncorptech.com.hk where extensive information
and updates on the Company's business developments and
operations, financial information and other information are
posted.

On behalf of the Board

ZHU Guangping
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 22 April 2009

TXREREBS

BRRz2BHE

EEQHNERRSERTHE LA
RERBFAEIEMRRASERR
BRYSBEREESE -

ARRERRRBF K g A R RRE L&
PEEEXBANBR BB EM
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BRAUREREARETRANETFE
RAEZEEFPHAIH REEFH
MRERZEARNETRANRERERES
B - URBEBREARNETRANERE
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FTARR A A A8 vk T -
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The Directors of the Company present their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and it also
provides corporate management services. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the design, manufacture and sales
and provision of assembly services of telephones and related
products.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 51.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past financial years is set out on page 140.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers in aggregate
accounted for approximately 77.6% of the turnover of the
Group and the largest customer accounted for approximately
19.4% of the turnover of the Group while the largest supplier,
Guo Wei accounted for 99.1% of the purchases of the Group.

At no time during the year did a Director, an associate of
a Director (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) or a
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
have an interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or
the largest supplier.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$5 million
on property, plant and equipment.

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in Note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital
of the Company are set out in Note 31 to the consolidated

financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the

date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Malcolm Stephen
JACOBS - Paton
Mr. ZHU Guangping

Mr. CHEUNG Chi Wai
Mr. Peter Francis Amour

Non-executive Directors:

Dato’ Dr. WONG Sin Just - Chairman

Mr. LEUNG Shek Kong

Mr. SONG Shufa

Mr. CHAN Kam Tim
Mr. MAK Chee Bun

(Appointed on 26 August 2008)

(Resigned on 4 March 2008)

(Re-designated from Executive Chairman
and Director to Non-executive
Chairman and Director
on 28 April 2008)

(Re-designated from Executive Director to
Non-executive Director on 26 August
2008)

(Appointed on 24 February 2009)

(Resigned on 7 April 2008)
(Resigned on 24 February 2009)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Dr. HUI Ka Wah, Ronnie, JP
Mr. HO Kwan Tat

Mr. WONG Kean Li

Mr. Thomas CHIA

Mr. Edward Hungerford
MILWARD-OLIVER

(Appointed on 31 March 2008)

(Appointed on 30 April 2008)
(Resigned on 31 March 2008)
(Resigned on 28 April 2008)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERSG

LN

FAARABAZ ZBFBHRGAM
ERERMEE3T ©

5%
ARRFARBEARSEHHPILZES
ZEMT
HITES:
Malcolm Stephen

JACOBS-PATON:

5ETEE  (RZZENENA-1/HE
£1I)

RERLE

BmELE (M=—ZEENF=ZRMHET)
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SBERERT (RZZEN\FNA-T/\BEm#H

I TERFEZHARFDN
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%%%%E (\—? ?}\E/\H %/\HE
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Exties (RZZTNFZA=+—BEf)
Edward (RZ2ZN\EMA=+/\BEHE)

Hungerford

MILWARD-

OLIVERS &

35

ZEENFEER

Annual Report 2008



36

FERNEERAA

Suncorp Technologies Limited

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERSG

DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with Bye-law 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. SONG Shufa retires at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

In accordance with Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Mr. CHEUNG Chi Wai, Mr. LEUNG Shek Kong and
Mr. WONG Kean Li retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

The term of office for each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors is the period from the date of last re-election up to
his retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2008, the interests and short positions
of the Directors, chief executive and their associates in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of the Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) (i) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFQO); or (ii)
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS EERFTETHRAEZROESR

IN SHARES (continued) (%)
Long Position 39
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company AR A ZREE. 18T BEHK

Number of ordinary shares held

FREBRBE
Percentage
of the issued
Personal Corporate share capital
Name of Director interests interests of the Company
BAREE BT
BEEpE Bz NEER REFDLE
(Note 1)
(Het1)
%
WONG Sin Just (Note 2) BERE(HiE2) - 108,780,000 7.30
LEUNG Shek Kong (Note 3) R (H:#3) 52,715,694 76,416,422 8.67
ZHU Guangping KEF 60,600,000 4.07
MAK Chee Bun (Note 4) BHE (Hit4) 4,041,951 - 0.27
Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON 782,343 - 0.05

Long position in underlying shares (in respect of share equity WHERG (ERERGERITETA)Z I
derivatives) E

Number of ordinary shares held

FEEBRBE
Percentage
of the issued
Personal share capital
Name of Director interests of the Company
BAREE BT
BEEpE 1Bl A FE 25 BREFDLE
(Note 1)
(Het1)
%
Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON 1,122,686 0.08
LEUNG Shek Kong RN 1,122,686 0.08
MAK Chee Bun BYE 1,122,686 0.08

CHEUNG Chi Wai RERE 1,188,727 0.08
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'’S INTERESTS
IN SHARES (continued)

Notes:

1. The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of the
Company'’s issued share capital of 1,489,788,925.

2 Dato’ Dr. Wong Sin Just, the Non-executive Chairman and
Director of the Company, is the beneficial owner of the entire
share capital of Fine High Investment Limited. In accordance
with the SFO, Dr. Wong is deemed to be interested in
108,780,000 Shares held by Fine High Investment Limited.

3. Mr. Leung Shek Kong, the Non-executive Director of the
Company, is entitled to exercise one third or more of the
voting power at the general meeting of Suncorp Partners
Limited. In accordance with the SFO, Mr. Leung is deemed
to be interested in 76,416,422 Shares held by Suncorp
Partners Limited, which together with his personal interest of
52,715,694 Shares totaling 129,132,116 Shares.

4. Mr. Mak Chee Bun resigned as a Non-executive Director on 24
February 2009.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, none of
the Directors nor chief executive of the Company had or was
deemed to have any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) (i) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (i) which were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code

EERFETBRABZROESR
(%)

1. ZREAD L RBEAARZEET
fi% 7x1,489,788,9250% 51 & o

2. ARBERTEIRREZLEARRE
{8+ AFine High Investment Limited
PHMRACEZHEEBA - BREEHFR
HIE &P - F1E 118 A% BFine High
Investment Limitedff 108,780,000
PR 1D o

3. AABFRTEERH A LERRE
ASuncorp Partners Limited % 3 A
LAFE=22 "IN ELFE-
REZEFRMEKRD 2RERAB
# ASuncorp Partners Limitedf £
76,416,422k fg 0 - ERA R K ER
52,715,694 i fn 2 I A #E 2t H -
WA 129,132,116 B HFHEA
R o

4, RYPELER - TETNEFEF A -1+
ARHIIERITES -

BREXEEEN R-_TENE+ A
=+—B ARRAEERETBITHAB
EARRREBARZB (EERELRK
HIE &) EXVED) 2 B ~ 18 B AR 1 =k
BREER TEERREESFRLHE
B EXVEET RS BABINARF K
BRAZEREIAR (BEREZEHFR
Rz BBERXESHIEIRE B
BAECERRKE)  SNREBEESF R
HI & 16 0] 5535215 78 58 82 IR BB A% 16 P
BFEzELMzEER AR « Si)BRE
ZETAmMAMNGARR KRB ZE
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SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out

in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s
share options held by the Directors and employees during the

year:
Date of

Name Notes  grant Exercise period

% WE  RUAR i

(A) DIRECTORS E%

Peter Francis AMOUR (b) 33.2003
(29}3 o) 9.12.2003
(b) 16.3.2004

3.3.2003 - 2.3.2008
9.12.2003 - 8.12.2008
16.3.2004 - 15.3.2009

3.3.2003 - 2.3.2008
9.12.2003 - 8.12.2008
16.3.2004 - 15.3.2009

Malcolm Stephen (b) 3.3.2003
JACOBS - PATON (b) 9.12.2003
(b) 16.3.2004

LEUNG Shek Kong (b) 33.2003
251 ) 9.12.2003
(b) 16.3.2004

3.3.2003 - 2.3.2008
9.12.2003 - 8.12.2008
16.3.2004 - 15.3.2009

MAK Chee Bun o) 3.3.2003
Y5 (b) 9.12.2003
o) 16.3.2004

3.3.2003 - 2.3.2008
9.12.2003 - 8.12.2008
16.3.2004 - 15.3.2009

CHEUNG Chi Wai (b)&(d)  25.5.2007 255.2007 - 24.5.2012

¥

Sub-tota\
Nt

(B) EMPLOYEES (OTHER THAN DIRECTORS) 2 (T8 EZ)

(b)&(c  9.12.2003
(o) &(d) 2552007

9.12.2003 - 8.12.2008
255.2007 - 24.5.2012

Exercise
price per

share

BRAEE

HKS
o

(Note &)

)
%'/ifi/

0317
0.999
0.976

0.377
0.999
0.976

0.377
0.999
0.976

0317
0.999
0.976

0.409

0.999
0.409

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERSG

Bk
ARBIZ BREFEFEENGZS UM
W& MFE32

TEEBEERERRA 2 ARABR
BRENZ &

Balance  Granted  Exercised  Forfeited Expired Balance
at during during during during at
112008  theyear  theyear  theyear  theyear 31.12.2008
RZB2NE e 2183
-B-H tZAz1-A
BB ERRE  EROR FARK ERER &
(Note &)
(s
1,122,686 - - - (1,122,686) -
1,939,185 - - (1,939,185) - -
1,122,686 - - (1,122,686) - 7
1,122,686 - - - (1,122,686) -
1,939,185 - - - (1,939,185) -
1,122,686 - - - - 1,122,686
1,122,686 - - - (1,122,686) -
1,939,185 - - - (1939,185) -
1,122,686 - - - - 1,122,686
1,122,686 - - - (1,122,686) -
1,939,185 - - - (1,939,185) -
1,122,686 - - - - 1,122,686
1,188,727 - - - - 11887
17,926,955 - - (3061871) (10,308,299) 4,556,785
1,086,964 - - (1,086,964) - -
9,224,125 - - (7,670,052) - 1,554,073
10,311,089 - - (8,757,016) - 1,554,073
28,238,004 - - (11818,887) (10308299) 6,110,858
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

The number and exercise price of the share options brought
forward from 2007 has been adjusted to reflect the effect of
the rights issues during the year ended 31 December 2007.

The share options were granted pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme.

The share options are exercisable subject to (i) up to 50% of
the share options are exercisable from 9 December 2003 to 8
December 2004; (ii) all remaining share options are exercisable
from 9 December 2004 to 8 December 2008.

The share options are exercisable subject to (i) up to 50% of
the share options are exercisable from 25 May 2007 to 24 May
2008; (ii) all remaining share options are exercisable from 25
May 2008 to 24 May 2012.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES

As at 31 December 2008, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
showed that other than the interests disclosed in “Directors’
and Chief Executive's Interests in Shares”, the following
shareholders had notified the Company of its relevant interests
in the issued capital of the Company.

Long Position

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERSG

FERRzZROER

RIESEREBITHRAB 2B AR
W Ems  MARRBIRE ML
BERPIEBHEFEZ T BRRECM
FRE R-ZE\F+-_A=1+—8"
ERRARAEHITRA Z AREEDA
SERRNARZBRMAT »

mp

5y
AR AEGREE. BT EAER

Name of shareholder

RREE, £

Fine High Investment Limited (Note 3)
(H1i#3)

Suncorp Partners Limited (Note 4)
(Hi5ta)

Siu Kwok Chung
REIR

Uniden Corporation
New Wise International Holdings

Limited (Note 5)
BEBEEEER NG (HiE5)

Percentage
of the issued
share capital

Number of of the

Capacity ordinary shares held Company

YN

28T

54 g BEREE BAE DL

(Note 1) (Note 2)

(BiaE1) (Hfit2)

%

Beneficial owner 108,780,000 7.30
ERBEEA

Beneficial owner 76,416,422 5.13
ERBEEA

Beneficial owner 85,000,000 5.71
ERBEEA

Beneficial owner 83,100,000 5.58
EREEA

Beneficial owner 77,900,000 5.23
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERSG

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES (continued)

Notes:

1. The information given above on the number of shares held
is based on notifications received by the Company as at 31
December 2008.

0 The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of the
Company’s issued share capital of 1,489,788,925.

3. Dato’ Dr. Wong Sin Just, the Non-executive Chairman and
Director of the Company, is the beneficial owner of the entire
share capital of Fine High Investment Limited. In accordance
with the SFO, Dr. Wong is deemed to be interested in
108,780,000 Shares held by Fine High Investment Limited.

4, Mr. Leung Shek Kong, the Non-executive Director of the
Company, is entitled to exercise one third or more of the
voting power at the general meeting of Suncorp Partners
Limited. In accordance with the SFO, Mr. Leung is deemed to
be interested in 76,416,422 Shares held by Suncorp Partners
Limited.

5. Mr. Song Shufa was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of the Company effective 24 February 2009. Mr. Song is the
beneficial owner of 70% of the share capital of New Wise
International Holdings Limited. In accordance with the SFO,
Mr. Song is deemed to be interested in 77,900,000 Shares
held by New Wise International Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company were not aware of any
other person (other than the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company) who had, or was deemed to have, interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares, which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or who was directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of
the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any member
of the Group.

FERRzZR O #ER (R)
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&L AFine High Investment Limited
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Investment Limited P #5108,780,000
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¥ BSuncorp Partners LimitedfT #
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GUARANTEES TO AFFILIATED COMPANY

As at 31 December 2008, no guarantee was given by the
Group to banks in respect of banking facilities granted to Guo
Wei (2007: HK$1 million).

Details of the jointly controlled entity are set out in Note 18 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company has no reserve available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2008.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus account of the Company is available
for distribution. However, a Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if:

(a) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable
to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and
its issued share capital and share premium accounts.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’'s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERSG

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all of the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of which
are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY?’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed
securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 December 2008.
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AUDITOR

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng were appointed as the Company’s
auditors with effect from 13 February 2009 to fill the casual
vacancy following the resignation of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
on 13 January 2009. There have been no other changes of
auditors for the past three financial years.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2008 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng. A resolution will be submitted to the annual general
meeting to re-appoint HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng as auditors
of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

ZHU Guangping
Executive Director
Hong Kong, 22 April 2009
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BB RS

31/F, Gloucester Tower &6
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Suncorp Technologies Limited

. The Landmark iR

HLB B & 3 & F % B 11 Pedder Street 24TH11%

Hodgson Impey Cheng Central BHES
Chartered A ant Hong Kong =F el

artere ccountants

Certified Public Accountants RE31E
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED BHBEBEERLAARRE

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial
statements of Suncorp Technologies Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group")
set out on pages 51 to 139, which comprise the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 December 2008, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Except for the limitation in the scope of our work as explained
below, we conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement. However, because of the matters described in
the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, we were not
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide
a basis for an audit opinion.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant
to the entity's preparation and true and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements. However, because
of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion
paragraphs, we were not able to express an audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BB RS

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Scope limitation — net gain on deconsolidation of
winding-up subsidiaries

Included in other income in the consolidated income statement
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 was
net gain on deconsolidation of winding-up subsidiaries
of approximately HK$430,328,000, of which an amount
of approximately HK$355,320,000 related to the gain on
deconsolidation of Suncorp Industrial Limited (“SIL"), a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. A winding-up order
was granted by the court against SIL on 15 December 2008
and accordingly the directors of the Company considered
that the Group’s control over SIL had been lost as from that
date. In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group had
deconsolidated SIL as from 15 December 2008 and recorded
a gain on deconsolidation of SIL based on the unaudited
management accounts of SIL as at and for the period from 1
January 2008 to 15 December 2008. We have been unable to
obtain independent confirmations or carry out alternative audit
procedures to obtain sufficient reliable audit evidence to satisfy
ourselves as to the validity and completeness of assets and
liabilities of SIL at the date of deconsolidation as shown in the
aforesaid unaudited management accounts of SIL. There were
no other satisfactory audit procedures that we could adopt
to satisfy ourselves that the aforesaid unaudited management
accounts of SIL were free from material misstatement, and that
the assets and liabilities of SIL at the date of deconsolidation
were fairly stated. Any adjustments that might have been
found to be necessary in respect of the above would have a
consequential significant effect on the gain on deconsolidation
of SIL of approximately HK$355,320,000 included in the
consolidated income statement of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2008 and the related disclosures thereof
in the consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (continued)

Material uncertainties relating to the outcome of
legal proceedings and the going concern basis

We have considered the adequacy of the disclosures made in
Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements concerning
the possible outcome of legal proceedings involving the
Company and certain of its existing and former directors in
connection with a claim filed by a substantial shareholder,
Uniden Hong Kong Limited (“Uniden HK"), and its ultimate
holding company (collectively referred to as the “Uniden
Group”) in relation to the alleged misrepresentations made by
the Company and certain of its existing and former directors,
and the breach of a business alliance agreement and a master
production agreement. The Uniden Group sought, inter alia, (i)
a rescission of the subscription agreement, pursuant to which
Uniden HK acquired 82,000,000 new shares in the Company,
and the consequential return of the relevant subscription
money of approximately HK$143,500,000; (ii) damages for
misrepresentation or breach of warranty; (iii) damages for
breach of the business alliance agreement and the master
production agreement; and (iv) the legal costs of this action,
plus interest. The directors of the Company strongly refute and
intend to vigorously contest Uniden Group’s allegations, and
are of the opinion, having taken legal advice, that the action
can be successfully defended. However, there is uncertainty as
to whether the above action can be successfully defended and
accordingly, there may be a potential significant impact on the
financial performance and position of the Group.

In addition, as set out in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s consolidated net liabilities as at 31
December 2008 amounted to approximately HK$123,514,000.
This condition indicates the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and therefore the Group may be
unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business.

BYZBO®RSE

TRRERBANEE @

FREZEFLANERUREELE
EENBATAPREER

BMEZEREGEEMBHREMEITAZSR
AhBEEEBIR EATIKRAEETH
ERAFESNERFRTELENE
R ZFABEREZRRUniden Hong
Kong Limited ([Uniden HK]) % H & &
BREA A (57 A [ Unidenk B ]) 5118
7 ERRIRETHRERMETESE
HABERBAUARER —BEEBHBER
EZh—BEERHRE MRELDRE-
UnidenR B Ek (BEF E7) (VHIEE#H
Uniden HK42 E£82,000,000% &2 &7
17 7O 3% B8 155 & 30 3R 121 4R B 3R e AR LAY
143,500,000/ 7T  (ii)5t & B Rt 532
RFRFBREBEEE  (i)phiE R EE
RhEREEEREREBEERE K
(iv)EE 18 L IEA BT B R AR B AU LA
B BRAEZRIRELEBERR
FUnidenEBMEE UHEBEREEE
RERBBEERTHIERDIE -
A B RGBT LIERTHES
I At keescEE@RYH &
SENMBERARMKAERNEATE -

BEAN - BAARA MR RN 2AE 0 B
SRR T N\F+_A=+—HH4
BBEFELA123,514,0008 7T It
MBERGFEEATHBARBR g
Y BEEEECERBEEERELE:
B BESEBEReRALKREREE
EBBRTEEESHREERRE -

T Sii

49

ZEENFEER

Annual Report 2008



50

FERNEERAA

Suncorp Technologies Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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DISCLAIMER OF OPINION: DISCLAIMER ON VIEW
GIVEN BY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Because of the significance of the matters described in the
basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, we do not express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as to
whether they give a true and fair view of the state of the
Group's affairs as at 31 December 2008 and of its profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards. In all other respects,
in our opinion the consolidated financial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 April 2009
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Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Distribution and selling expenses

Operating expenses

Impairment loss on trade and
other receivables from a jointly
controlled entity

Impairment losses on other assets

Fair value change on conversion
options embedded in convertible
loan notes

Finance costs

Profit/(loss) before tax
Income tax expense

Profit/(loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Minority interests

Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year

Earnings/(loss) per share
— Basic (HK cents per share)

— Diluted (HK cents per share)

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

=L O S

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZ—ZTN\F+_-_A=+—HItFE

1§
HERAK
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HE WA

HE M HFAX
LERX

i el NS
IR R EMRER
REZBERR
HitEE 2 RERE
AR ERRE CNE
MR N FEE

MRERA

BRBLAEN, (BR)
RSB

AEERF, (BE)
TIIALRELR

2NN ESEYPN
DEBR

FABERRDIKL
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sRERN (H8E)
— &K (Zks)

NOTES
Pt o

18
10

30
11

12

16

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TRET
219,863 1,116,279
(209,509) (1,057,782)
10,354 58,497
466,643 8,692
(8,717) (45,019)
(40,701) (79,908)
(3,083) (209,858)
(334,457) (102,866)
5,326 =
(16,551) (14,737)
78,814 (385,199)
(1) (665)
78,813 (385,864)
78,813 (385,809)
- (55)
78,813 (385,864)
7.5 (56.9)

5.5 (56.9)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

FRREEBRBXR

At 31 December 2008 R=ZEZTN\F+=-A=+—H

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

ERBEE
ERNE B

Interest in a jointly controlled entity R—FEA% QR ZER

Intangible assets

Current assets
Inventories
Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade receivables with insurance
coverage

Trade and other receivables
from a jointly controlled entity

Bills receivable discounted with
full recourse

Tax recoverable

Pledged bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Advances drawn on trade
receivables with insurance
coverage

Advances drawn on bills receivable

discounted with full recourse
Amounts due to directors

Conversion options embedded in

convertible loan notes

Tax payable

Obligations under finance leases
due within one year

Bank borrowings due within
one year
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NOTES
P &t

17
18
19

20

21

22

23

24
24

25

26

26
27

30

29

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TEx
7,102 5,623
7,102 5,623
- 26,286
6,237 11,709
- 144,586

- 30,809
2,060 2,358
- 15,966
4,610 11,813
12,907 243,527
41,323 296,714
- 132,294

- 30,809
34,283 23,843
27,490 =
- 2,675
1,597 8,462
- 25,400
104,693 520,197




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Net current liabilities REEEFHE

Total assets less current liabilities 2EERAEAE

Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Amounts due to minority AN
shareholders IR IR
Obligations under finance leases R—F &Iz E
due after one year MEBT 2 EH
Convertible loan notes TRREREE
Net liabilities BEEE
Capital and reserves MR K
Share capital R
Reserves [
Equity attributable to equity RRRIRAFFAE A
holders of the Company FEfEHEm
Minority interests DYR R
Total equity AR

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 April 2009
and were signed on its behalf by:

REEERRBER

At 31 December 2008 R=ZENF+-A=1+—H

2008 2007

NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
ks TERT TRET
(91,786) (276,670)

(84,684) (271,047)

27 - 798
28 - 1,657
30 38,830 =
38,830 2,455

(123,514) (273,502)

31 148,979 86,059
(272,493) (359,670)

(123,514) (273,611)

- 109

(123,514) (273,502)

BAMBRXRXER_-_ZTTAFOA
T REEESHRAERRETE I
A NIEERERRE

ZHU Guangping Malcolm Stephen Jacobs-Paton
Director Director
KEF Malcolm Stephen Jacobs-Paton
EZE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
# B X

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZ—ZZE\&+_-A=+—HItFE

mA R B

uary 2007

At 1 Janu
“ZZtE-H-H

S

Exchange differences
arising on translation
of foreign operations
recognised directly
in the equity
MERBERRARENEH
MEEZERZ8

Loss for the year

RERER

Total recognised income
and expense for the year

RERRD L BRARFIX

Rights issues

ik

Share placement

RERH

Share issue expenses

RAETRX

Exercise of share options

TiEERE

Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments
ANRREE LN
ROBER 25

Forfeiture of vested
share options

RRCER R

At 31 December 2007
RZEEHE+ZA=1-H

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARARKEAARLE
Other Share

Share Share capital ~ Translation option Accumulated Minority Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-total ~interests equity
kx  RORE HtEARE  4ERE BRERSE  ZmEd Mt SBRERR h
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
TARL TAL TAL TERL TEL TAR TARL TAL TARL

(Note)

i)
40,974 171,238 14,945 (3,248) 1,618 (264,851) (39,324) 164 (39,160)
- - - (284) - - (284) - (284)
- - - - - (385,809)  (385,809) (55)  (385,864)
- - - (284) - (385,809)  (386,093) (55)  (386,148)
38,926 92,602 - - - - 131,528 - 131,528
6,146 17,823 - - - - 23,969 - 23,969
- (6,616) - - - - (6,616) - (6,616)
13 2 - - - - 37 - 37
- - - - 2,888 - 2,888 - 2,888
- - - - (1,618) 1618 - - -
86,059 275,071 14,945 (3,532) 2888 (649,042  (273,611) 109 (273,502)




Exchange differences arising
on translation of foreign
operations recognised
directly in the equity
RMESERIETAEEN
SHMEE BLEE

Profit for the year

REREN

Total recognised income
and expense for the year

RERHDZBRARRX

Deconsolidation of

vvinding up subsidiaries
Hi/ﬁ MTE

GAAE

Issue of shares upon
conversion of convertible
loan notes

RUaRERZ AR
[k

Forfeiture of vested share
options

RRCHR B

At 31 December 2008
\ ? ? )\¢+ ﬂ + E

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GARER DX

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE-ZZN\F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARAREEEARL

Other Share
Share Share capital  Translation option Accumulated Minority Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests equity
kx  ROEE HtEARE  4ERE BRERGE  ZHEd Mt HURRER h
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
TR TR TEx TEn i TERL TERL TEL TR

(Note)

- - - 795 - - 795 - 795
- - - - - 78,813 78,813 - 78,813
- - - 795 - 78,813 79,608 - 79,608
- - - 2,694 - - 2,694 (109) 2,585
62,920 4875 - - - - 67,795 - 67,795
- - - - (792) 79 - - -
148,979 279,946 14,945 43) 209  (569437) (123,514 - (123514)

At 31 December 2008, the accumulated losses of the Group
included accumulated losses of approximately HK$44,357,000
(2007: HK$44,357,000) attributable to its jointly controlled

entity.

Note: Other capital reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital and the share
premium of the subsidiaries at the date on which they were
acquired by the Group and the nominal value of the share
capital issued as consideration for the acquisition.

RZEENF+ZA=+—H £5H
Z;%ﬂéﬂaﬁﬁﬁé%@ﬁﬁﬂﬁz;%ﬁ
& 18 4944,357,0008 T (Z 2Tt F :
44,357,000 7T) °

Wit AEBZEMEARERNER
%ﬁ$‘§ll&ﬁ§“52ﬁx$&ﬂﬂmm
EREEFERRBREMET IR
AHEZRZEZE -
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZ—ZZE\&+_-A=+—HItFE

56

FRNMEAERL A

Suncorp Technologies Limited

2008 2007
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 FEx FET
Operating activities RExER
Profit/(loss) before tax BB F, (E1R) 78,814 (385,199)
Adjustments for: R
Amortisation of financial TRUERG K B 5H
guarantee contracts - (2,683)
Amortisation of intangible assets ~ EFEE 2 #iH - 20,400
Depreciation of property, ME - BERRBIITE
plant and equipment 2,055 27,118
Fair value change on conversion RBRERER AT
options embedded in nmikgEs A FEE
convertible loan notes (5,326) -
Interest expense FERZ 16,551 14,737
Interest income FEBA (358) (871)
Impairment loss on trade and ER—FHeE R rIES
other receivables from a AR R R EL At R W 5078
jointly controlled entity ZRIEE1E 3,083 209,858
Impairment loss on other assets HihEE 2 REEE 334,457 102,866
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BEK&EZ
plant and equipment (Wzm) /BB (13,700) 2,160
Net gain on deconsolidation of THEEERHMBATF
winding-up subsidiaries N N R Eye s (430,328) -
Waiver of liabilities of subsidiaries 1R B EBREMEAR
pursuant to deeds of settlement fTERAR.ZBE (20,068) -
Equity-settled share-based PARRZR 8 B3 LARR 17 72
payment expenses BN RO R - 2,888
Operating cash flows before Rt E BB BRI 2
movements in working capital KERERE (34,820) (8,726)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE (#mn) R (30,477) 6,111
(Increase)/decrease in trade, bills EWE SRR - ERERE
and other receivables K B At MR IR
(gm) Ed (5.857) 15,486
Decrease/(increase) in trade BERFRZERE S
receivables with insurance REORL, (3Em)
coverage 144,586 (65,264)
Decrease in bills receivable MEZEERE R
discounted with full recourse BREBRD 30,809 97,340
Decrease in trade and other 8 SRR & EA
payables RN SRR (74,760) (21,800)
Cash generated from operations REEX RS 29,481 23,147
Interest paid BEARFIE (6,571) (13,524)
Income taxes refunded/(paid) BERE (Bf) FMEHR 2,053 (354)

Net cash generated from REEBRELECHEFE
operating activities 24,963 9,269




Investing activities

Increase in amount due from a
jointly controlled entity

Decrease/(increase) in pledged
bank deposits

Net cash outflow arising from
deconsolidation of winding-up
subsidiaries

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Interest received

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net cash generated from/
(used in) investing activities

Financing activities

Increase in advances drawn on bills
receivable discounted with full
recourse

Increase in advances drawn on trade

receivables with insurance
coverage

Proceeds from issue of new shares

Proceeds from issue of convertible
loan notes

New bank borrowings raised

Repayment of advances drawn
on bills receivable discounted
with full recourse

Repayment of advances drawn
on trade receivables with
insurance coverage

Repayment of bank borrowings

Repayment of obligations under
finance leases

Advances from/(repayment to)
directors

Payment for share issue expenses

Interest paid for convertible
loan notes

Interest paid for finance leases

Net cash (used in)/generated
financing activities

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

GEHRETRE X

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE-ZZN\F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

REXK
FBR—EEERRZ
SIEE
EHERRITER

B/ (B
THEERMBARGA
AREEZREREFE

BEME BEL&E

B UAE
HENE BER
R 50R

REEBEL (BA) 2
REFE

MERK
B M A2EERERE,
REE 2 BFIEM

BXERRENE HHERY
BRI

BATHRAD 2 FrS500R
BOARESRREERZ
PSR

e 2 RTTHEE

EEEXMAEEHERE
ABER R IR 2 B

[EESEEARE S
AR B IR 2 B

ERRITEE
EERMEHERT 2ER

B3R/ (AEFEH)

X B An BT X
RABRREREES 2
FIE
ARMEREZNZHE

mEXK (B3A) EE
ZHEFR

NOTE
Pl

40

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
(3,083) (102,651)
15,966 (15,966)
(1,497) =
(5,030) (10,997)
358 871
14,546 |
21,260 (128,743)
- 487,701

- 300,828

- 155,534
131,520 -
- 127,275
(30,809) (585,041)
(132,294) (248,260)
(25,400) (125,402)
(8,171) (19,156)
11,041 (15,125)
- (6,616)

(83) —
(229) (1,213)
(54,425) 70,525
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FERITRE X

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE-ZZENF+-A=1+—HItFE

Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
the beginning of the
financial year

Cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the financial year,
represented by bank balances
and cash

REeRALSEAR
OB

HNEERSDH o HE

RUBEFERBRZEER
RE%EER

RMBFEGREZAER
RESEER - B
BITEBRRRE

NOTE
Pt o

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET
(8,202) (48,949)
999 (80)
11,813 60,842
4,610 11,813




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE-ZZN\F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

GENERAL

Suncorp Technologies Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company and
it also provides corporate management services. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the design,
manufacture and sales and provision of assembly services
of telephones and related products.

The functional currency of the Company is United States
dollars (“USD"). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") for the
convenience of the Company's shareholders, as the
Company is listed in Hong Kong.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given consideration to the
future liquidity of the Group in light of its consolidated
net liabilities of approximately HK$123,514,000 at 31
December 2008. The directors of the Company have
been taking active steps to improve the liquidity position
of the Group. These steps include (i) undertaking a
number of fund raising transactions during the financial
year ended 31 December 2008; and (ii) implementing
stringent cost control measures to strengthen its cash flow
position. Provided that these measures can successfully
improve the liquidity position of the Group, the directors
of the Company are satisfied that the Group will be
able to continue to operate with no significant financial
difficulties. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

1.

—REH

MHREMRERAR (TEAF]) A
ERREEMRLZZHREERA
A EBRNERBBARIMAR
AR ([BXA]) £ e KDF] G
MERE kTR Z MUK
AERZNAERTRE -

ARAT—HREZERAR - TR
HEXEERS -HENBARIEER
R=ERREBER 2R BE
FHE A R R R B RF XL -

ARFAZNERBBET - ERE
AREEELN  AFERAAR
FoZ KBARBRRNBRE
%

WRMBHRR2EE

EREREVBRER  EREE
BER-—ZTENFE+=-_A=+—HZ
e BEFELA123,514,0008
T ARREECDEEAEEZH
BRBESKRN - ARBEE—FH
KREBRTRAEAEEB 2 RHE
EMR - ZETBEEONREZEZ
ZTZN\FE+_-_A=1+—BUITHBF
BETZEEER S kiNEHER
WA EGIE M - AMBAEE 2
BeREMN - EZEHEATRY
WEREB ZRBE S MR AR
T AAREEEMASE K&
BEEBEMESAMBEE - Eit
RENBRREBRBEFELCEEE
mEd o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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% W& MR

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZ—ZZE\&+_-A=+—HItFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments and interpretations (the “new HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA"), which are or have become
effective.

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial Assets

(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) = Int 1 HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury
Share Transactions

HK(IFRIC) = Int 1 Service Concession Arrangements

HK(IFRIC) = Int 1 HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined

Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction

The application of the new HKFRSs had no material effect
on how the results and financial position for the current
or prior accounting periods have been prepared and
presented. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has
been required.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments or interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet effective.

F& 3R 4 2 B

3. EREHNREBIIZERY

RAFEE  AEBERAATHER
eMAg ((BEREHMAE])E
MMBREXERERZ BT RERE

([HEBUBRE

BRGTEIR0RR

BB R L
ERACHES
& (BRIBRS
#EZEE)
-RERNR
& BRHBRS
#EZEE)
-RERN
& BRHBRS
#EZEE)
-RERUR

ERHEBHBER

Di&ZZ’SA

£A1) -

TRAELENNR

o e
25 -58k
BERGRS
&ﬁ%&%tﬁ

AR gl
#1958 - RERH
AEZRH &K
BRURR hE
HEBE

CREIEE
B ADEYIE- i+%ﬁ
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W AEL AT R
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Al FE A LA T 2 28 b
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE-ZZN\F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKAS 32 & 1
(Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 8
HK(IFRIC) - Int 1
HK(IFRIC) - Int 15

HK(IFRIC) - Int 16
HK(IFRIC) - Int 1

HK(IFRIC) - Int 18

Improvements to HKFRSs'
Presentation of Financial Statements?
Borrowing Costs?

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements®
Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation?
Eligible Hedged Items?

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or
Associate?

Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations?

Business Combination?

Operating Segments?
Customer Loyalty Programmes*

Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate?

Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation®

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners®

Transfers of Assets from Customers®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009 except for the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2009

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2009

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2008

J Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

October 2008

® Effective for transfers of assets from customers received on

or after 1 July 2009
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B ®RXMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZ—ZZE\&+_-A=+—HItFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the
accounting for business combination for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 July 20009.
HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting treatment for
changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised standards,
amendments or interpretations will have no material
impact on the results and the financial position of the
Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE-ZZN\F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or
up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with those used by other members of the
Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets consist
of the amount of those interests at the date of the
original business combination and the minority’s share
of changes in equity since the date of the combination.
Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s
interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against
the interests of the Group except to the extent that the
minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets
or, where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ﬁ/\

% W& MR

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZ—ZZE\&+_-A=+—HItFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in the consolidated income statement in the year in which
the item is derecognised.

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment
of a separate entity in which venturers have joint control
over the economic activity of the entity are referred to as
jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, investments in jointly controlled
entities are carried in the consolidated balance sheet
at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the
Group's share of the net assets of the jointly controlled
entities, less any identified impairment loss. When the
Group's share of losses of a jointly controlled entity equals
or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled entity,
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and
a liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled
entity of the Group, unrealised profits or losses are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’'s interest in
the jointly controlled entity, except to the extent that
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred, in which case, the full amount of losses
is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZ—ZTN\F+_-_A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets - research and development
expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is
anticipated that the development costs incurred on a
clearly-defined project will be recovered through future
commercial activity.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets
the recognition criteria. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’'s financial assets comprise only loans and
receivables. All reqular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE-ZZN\F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade, bills and other receivables, trade
receivables with insurance coverage, trade and other
receivables from a jointly controlled entity, bills receivable
discounted with full recourse, pledged bank deposits and
bank balances) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy in respect of impairment loss
on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at each balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been impacted.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty;

e default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade,
bills and other receivables, trade receivables with insurance
coverage, trade and other receivables from a jointly
controlled entity and bills receivable discounted with full
recourse, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on these receivables.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade, bills and other receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
an item of trade, bills and other receivables is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE-ZZN\F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in
respect of financial liabilities and equity instruments are
set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss has
two subcategories, including financial liabilities held for
trading and those designated as at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near future;

e it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for
trading may be designated as at fair value through profit
or loss upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise;

e the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's
documented risk management or investment strategy,
and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss includes any interest paid on the financial liability.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
advances drawn on trade receivables with insurance
coverage and advances drawn on bills receivable
discounted with full recourse, amounts due to directors,
financial guarantee contracts, obligations under finance
leases and bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE-ZZN\F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Convertible loan notes

If the conversion option of convertible loan notes exhibits
characteristics of an embedded derivative, it is separated
from its liability component. On initial recognition, the
derivative component of the convertible loan notes is
measured at fair value and presented as part of derivative
financial instruments. Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the derivative component
is recognised as the liability component. Transaction
costs are apportioned between the liability and derivative
components of the convertible loan notes based on
the allocation of proceeds to the liability and derivative
components when the instruments are initially recognised.
The portion of the transaction costs relating to the liability
component is recognised initially as part of the liability.
The portion relating to the derivative component is
recognised immediately in the income statement.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the original or modified terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and
not designated as at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised initially at its fair value less transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contact at the
higher of: (i) the amount determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire, or the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE-ZZN\F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets and intangible
assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately. When an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for goods sold in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when goods
are delivered and title has been passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
state-managed retirement scheme which are defined
contribution schemes, are charged as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in the consolidated balance sheet as a finance
lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between
finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged
directly to profit or loss. Rentals payable under operating
leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease
are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

FESHEHR @
HE

EHNBEELHERMELEZBX
MR L SRERRAEA &
FHAOBRRABRERERD - A
HpHEHRRERZEEMRE -

P EE BAENA

REREHERACEENENE
MR A FEIKERS <HE R
REE/E)RA/AKEZEE -
HEBEAZHEEAGBEAREHN
EZEBHARREERARER-H
HEBEERARNRBEEET A
AEE NAAEHREERE T 2
X-BEEHEZBRAKRNRE -
LZEREZRNESNEHAEZE
RAEBRERMEG -HRFTZEH
NEKkERZZBEES  KE
BRERNEBABRRAHESER 2N
o

fEE A

B BRIUEECEREEME
BRELMBERADIBERTENER
REBENBAIRE - EEEEK
WA EEREREAHEER AT
BREEXNAEREN -KEEE
ERREARERBEENRATETT
HREBREMRIERERA - &
A BRBTERNEERAHR -

EREMEERARELHIFHER
AR ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE-ZZN\F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated income statement because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
interest in a joint venture, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited
to profit or loss, except when it relates to items charged
or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also dealt with in equity.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (“foreign currencies”)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised as a separate
component of equity (the translation reserve). Such
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
option reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss with a corresponding
adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to accumulated profits.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
the directors of the Company are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Going concern and liquidity

The Group had consolidated net liabilities of approximately
HK$123,514,000 at 31 December 2008, indicating
the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt about the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern. The directors of the Company have been
taking active steps to improve the liquidity position of the
Group and details are set out in Note 2.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis. Should the above measures
fail to improve the liquidity position of the Group and
the Group was unable to continue in business as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to reduce
the carrying amounts of the assets of the Group to their
recoverable amounts and to provide for further liabilities
which might arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZ—ZT \F+-_A=+—HItFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)

Fair value of conversion options embedded in
convertible loan notes

The directors of the Company use their judgement in
selecting an appropriate valuation technique for financial
instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation
techniques commonly used by market practitioners
are applied. For the conversion options embedded in
the convertible loan notes as disclosed in Note 30,
assumptions are made based on quoted market prices or
rates as adjusted for specific features of the instruments.
The aggregate carrying amount of the conversion options
embedded in the convertible loan notes is approximately
HK$27,490,000 at 31 December 2008.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (which
includes bank borrowings, obligations under finance leases
and convertible loan notes), cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to equity holders of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and accumulated
losses.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
by considering the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. In view of this, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the issue of
new shares as well as the issue of new debt.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. €@IA
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) eI EZER
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Financial assets CREE
Loans and receivables B KR
— Trade, bills and other -BUREFER  BEEER
receivables H {th FEU R IE 5,270 5,849
— Trade receivables with —ERRZERE FRR
insurance coverage - 144,586
— Bills receivable discounted with —MiEZEEZREY
full recourse e BE IR R - 30,809
— Pledged bank deposits —BEEFRITERK - 15,966
— Bank balances and cash —RITEHRRE 4,610 11,813
9,880 209,023
Financial liabilities cREE
Financial liabilities at fair value & AFEF|ABZREE
through profit or loss ZEeMARE
— Conversion options embedded —AI#MBRERER
in convertible loan notes N7 i 27,490 =
Financial liabilities at RE B AT R
amortised cost ZEMAE
— Trade and other payables — BB 5B E B ;IR 41,323 288,444
— Advances drawn on trade —EXERERERES
receivables with insurance R B
coverage - 132,294
— Advances drawn on bills —EXHEZHEREL
receivable discounted with FEUBEIR I 2 B
full recourse - 30,809
- Amounts due to directors —ERESHIA 34,283 23,843
— Obligations under finance leases —@EMREE T 2 &% 1,597 10,119
— Bank borrowings due within —-RN—ERIBEBTEE
one year - 25,400
— Amounts due to minority — RN ERFERIEA
shareholders - 798
— Convertible loan notes -~ RRERZERE 38,830 -
116,033 511,707
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 7. SRI R @)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) B EREERERBRE

policies

The Group's major financial instruments include
trade, bills and other receivables, trade receivables
with insurance coverage, trade and other receivables
from a jointly controlled entity, bills receivable
discounted with full recourse, pledged bank deposits,
bank balances, trade and other payables, advances
drawn on trade receivables with insurance coverage,
advances drawn on bills receivable discounted with
full recourse, amounts due to directors, obligations
under finance leases, bank borrowings, amounts due
to minority shareholders and convertible loan notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
and the policies applied by the Group on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk

(1)

Foreign currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. The carrying
amounts of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary
liabilities at the balance sheet date are as
follows:

7. ERIA M)
(b) HHEREEBERRER

(&)
™5 B ke
() SRR

Liabilities
=Li |

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
HKD BT 4,903 23,957
British Pound ("GBP") % 3,458
Euro (“EUR") BLZ& 847

Renminbi (“RMB") ARK

Sensitivity analysis

As USD is pegged with HKD, the Group's
currency risk in relation to the monetary assets
and monetary liabilities denominated in HKD is
expected to be minimal. The Group is mainly
exposed to the effects of fluctuation in GBP, EUR
and RMB.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BB ®RXMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZ—ZT \F+-_A=+—HItFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(1)

Foreign currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% increase and decrease in USD against
the respective foreign currencies and all
other variables were held constant. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used by management in the
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the balance sheet date for a
5% change in foreign currency rates. On this
basis, there will be an increase in profit (2007:
decrease in loss) where USD strengthen 5%
against the respective foreign currencies, and
vice versa.

7. ERIA M)
(b) HHEREEBERRER
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Increase in profit/decrease  FREFEM/
in loss for the year BERY

Impact of GBP Impact of EUR Impact of RMB
RERE BELRE INtrd 7
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000

féx Ter  TEr TR  TEr  TEn
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZ—ZZE\&+_-A=+—HItFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
(i) Interest rate risk

At 31 December 2008, management considers
that the Group was not exposed to significant
interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2007, the Group's cash flow
interest rate risk related primarily to variable-
rate bank balances, advances drawn on trade
receivables with insurance coverage, advances
drawn on bills receivable discounted with full
recourse, obligations under finance leases and
bank borrowings (see Notes 24, 26, 28 and 29
respectively). It is the Group’s policy to keep
its borrowings at floating rate of interests so
as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.
At 31 December 2007, the Group’s cash flow
interest rate risk was mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of LIBOR arising from the Group’s
USD denominated bank borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below was determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for the
Group's variable-rate bank borrowings at 31
December 2007. The analysis was prepared
assuming the financial instruments outstanding
at the balance sheet date were outstanding
for the whole year. 50 basis points increase or
decrease in LIBOR was used by management
in the assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BEUMBRERMWSE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #Z —ZZ \F+-A=1+—HItFE
7. ERIA M)

(b) ERBEEEZRBER

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

At 31 December 2007, if LIBOR interest rates
had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s
loss for the year ended 31 December 2007
would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$854,000. This was mainly attributable to the
Group's exposure to interest rates on its variable-
rate bank borrowings.

Credit risk

At 31 December 2008, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated balance sheet.

At 31 December 2007, the Group had concentration
of credit risk as approximately 40% and 77% of the
total trade receivables were due from the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZ—ZZE\&+_-A=+—HItFE

7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

In order to manage the credit risk, the management
of the Group has monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at each balance
sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. Impairment
losses of approximately HK$3,083,000 (2007:
HK$209,858,000) and approximately HK$4,083,000
(2007: HK$1,183,000) in respect of the amount due
from a jointly controlled entity and trade receivables
were recognised by the Group for the year ended
31 December 2008, respectively. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group's
credit risk is being managed.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are creditworthy banks.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Management
monitors the utilisation of borrowings.

The consolidated net liabilities of the Group at
31 December 2008 amounted to approximately
HK$123,514,000. The directors of the Company
have been taking active steps to improve the
liquidity position of the Group. These steps include
(i) undertaking a number of fund raising transactions
during the year ended 31 December 2008; and
(ii) implementing stringent cost control measures
to strengthen its cash flow position. Provided that
these measures can successfully improve the liquidity
position of the Group, the directors of the Company
are satisfied that the Group will be able to continue
to operate with no significant financial difficulties.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 7. €E®MIAE
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) B BERBEEEERBX
policies (continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) nREBEERER (@)
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRANIREBZCREREDN
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For 8 NRI AR BB R o BLIEDTAE
non-derivative financial liabilities, the table reflects CHBEMNS  ZERRBER
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities BEAREEMHERNAIZRE
based on the earliest date on which the Group can BEmMELemEERHR
be required to pay. The table includes both interest Beme TREFENERAEAS
and principal cash flows. ZHEM
Carrying
amount
at 31
Total  December
Weighted undis- 2008
average counted H=BFNE
interest rate  Less than 13 3 months 1to cash flows tZA
MEFEH  1month  months tolyear  3years KEERE =1-8
FE SMER  123WA MARE 1B RHE  cREE
%  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
ThR ThR TR TR ThR ThR
2008 “EENE
Non-derivative financial ~ %74 £BEE
liabilities
Trade and other payables  ERZSEHR
A EMTE - M3 - - - M3 M3
Amounts due to diectors  ENEZZ0R - 3428 - - - 34283 34283
Obligations under MAREETY
finance leases &% 5 288 538 803 - 1,629 1,597
Convertible loan notes ~~ WAREHFE 25 - 218 15 69286 69629 38830
75,894 756 928 69,286 146,864 116,033
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

2007 RRLE

Non-derivative financial  #f7£SRER
liabilities

Trade and other payables B EZERR

Hib R

Advances drawn on trade B ERREN
receivables with BAER
insurance coverage a5

Advances drawn on BxE2E
bills receivable BREE
discounted with WHRZR
ful recourse k5o

Amounts due to directors ~ [EREZ7UE

Obligations under MAHERED
finance leases LB

Bank borrowings - RBE-ZR
variable rate

Amounts due to ERDERR
minority shareholders EY]

Weighted
average
interest rate
T3
LK

%

13

13

7.35

7. €@ I A @)
(b) IBEAREEEERBKEK
(&)
REETEMR (&)
Carrying
amount
at 31
Total ~ December
undis- 2007
counted R=ZZ+E
Less than 1-3 3 months 110 cash flows +ZA
Tmonth  months  tolyear  3years AEHEHE =1-H
PMER  1EMEA 3MERRIE 133F ikt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TAn TET TEn TAT TAT
277,859 10,585 - - 288 444 288 444
55,691 58,002 28,258 - 141,951 132,294
18,276 14,458 324 - 33,058 30,809
23,843 - - - 23,843 23,843
1,097 2114 5,578 1,697 10,486 10,119
17,024 10,243 - - 27,267 25,400
798 - - - 798 798
394,588 95,402 34,160 1,697 525,847 511,707



FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZ—ZT \F+-_A=+—HItFE

7. €@IA @

(c) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative financial instruments)
are determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices or rates from observable current
market transactions as inputs. For an option-based
derivative, the fair value is estimated using option
pricing model (for example, the binomial model).

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values.

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents the gross amounts received and
receivable for goods sold by the Group to outside
customers, less returns and allowances, during the year.

Segment information is presented by way of two segment
formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by
geographical segment; and (ii) on a secondary segment
reporting basis, by business segment.

() EMITHEZQFE

ctREENEREARE (BEN
AERTAE) ZAFEDRIE
EEAMEBREN  HUR
RERPDOMAAEBRRER
MEXHMEERIERRA
BAMEE - SABERER
ZNMETAME  AVERE
MEEEEEN (Flm=E'EN
B mfhat

ARAEZRAERRMBR
RAREBERATE L TR
EENEREGBREEOMEE
RERXFHE-

KKk o EE R
BRERENARERIIREPHE
BRI H1& B WO b B W
BN Z RIBABHE -

DRERBMESIBEITAZR ()
NEBHEIBERSTIENERS
B RIAEBDBIERRESD
BlmEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B ®RXRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZ—ZZE\&+_-A=+—HItFE

8.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Geographical segments by location of customers with
reference to the location of final users of the telephone
and related equipment for the year ended 31 December
2008 are set out below:

2008

Revenue

Results
Segment results

Unallocated income

Unallocated corporate
expenses

Finance costs

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Consolidated
balance sheet

Assets

Unallocated assets

Liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

Other information
Impairment loss on
trade and other
receivables from
a jointly controlled
entity

Impairment loss on trade

receivables

g

ES

GEE S

48/
48/

BEZA
[Pt 3553

BIBARA

SS9

KRB AT A
FrSH s

REREH
GREERER

BE
BORCEE

af
BoRAE

Hitr &R

Y —RaE R
ESRFREMD
MR ZRE
BE

BB AR L
AERE

8. WERSEEHR B
BE_ZZN\F+A=+—HL
FEZEBMWRSR(REFME
MEE D WKB2EEEREER
WREBE 2 PTEN) AW T -

Central
and
Eastern
Western Europe Asia
Europe R Pacific Others Total
[ii] SELN BAE Hito At
HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000
THET TR THET TR THET
164,214 9,665 43,266 2,718 219,863
(928) (436) (3,236) (123) (4,723)
471,969
(371,881)
(16,551)
78,814
(1
78,813
20,009
143,523
- - 3,083 - 3,083
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Geographical segments by location of customers with
reference to the location of final users of the telephone
and related equipment for the year ended 31 December
2007 are set out below:

8. WERDEESR (#)

BE-FELE+-A=+-AL
FE2EBREDR (BEPHE
WEES LS EBEREBR
BEKAP 2 FiE) BHIOT :

2007
Central
and
Eastern
Western Europe Asia
Europe R Pacific Others Total
7R KRB YN Hith Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT THIL THT THT THT
Revenue g 1,008,136 16,983 66,988 24,172 1,116,279
Results ES
Segment results NEEE 1,725 480 633 648 3,486
Unallocated income EHIE 2 WA 8,692
Unallocated corporate ‘AR LE
expenses FxX (382,640)
Finance costs BHISRCAR (14,737)
Loss before tax FRBiATER (385,199)
Income tax expense FEHZ (665)
Loss for the year AEEER (385,864)
Consolidated REEERER
balance sheet
Assets BE
Segment assets NEEE 109,383 1,929 60,855 1,146 173,313
Unallocated assets ‘mAORCEE 75,837
Consolidated total assets ~ &RAMEE 249,150
Liabilities 8
Unallocated liabilities BoRCAE 522,652
Other information Hit &R
Impairment loss on trade B —fI&E AR
and other receivables BAERR KA
from a jointly controlled KB ZRE
entity E#E - - 209,858 - 209,858
Impairment loss on trade BN E SERFZ
receivables REBE - - 1,183 - 1,183
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZ—ZZE\&+_-A=+—HItFE

8.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

All of the Group’s revenue and contribution to results
were derived from the design, manufacture and sale and
provision of assembly services of telephones and related
equipment. Accordingly, no business segment analysis is
presented for the Group.

The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of
segment assets, and additions to property, plant and
equipment, analysed by the geographical areas in which
the assets are located, as at and for the year ended 31
December 2008:

8.

K&Kk o BER (#)

MEREERARERERRE RS
B LAERE 2R RENH
ERAREREERS - At AKHE
WEEBEB BN

UTAREREEMEHE ¥R _F
ENF+_RA=+—HBEEBE=Z
ZNF+_A=+—HBLEFEZH
BHEEREBEARYE BERE
BZRENDIN

The People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC")
(excluding Hong Kong)

Hong Kong

Carrying Additions to
amounts of  property, plant
segment assets  and equipment
ME - BER
PREEREE BEZHE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR
hEE A RLAE
(&)
(rFEREE) 7,377 4,560
BB 12,632 470
20,009 5,030

At 31 December 2007, over 90% of the assets of the
Group were located in Hong Kong. Accordingly, an
analysis of the carrying amounts of segment assets and
capital expenditure, analysed by the geographical areas in
which the assets were located, were not presented.

RZETZ+F+A=+—H" 'K
SEBBION I EEHMRES -
Al WEEREEMEHERZ 5
BEEREAAZEEEDN -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BB ®RXMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZ-ZTZN\F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

OTHER INCOME 9. HfttA
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Amortisation of financial CRERE D CHEHE
guarantee contracts - 2,683
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BEKZE
plant and equipment Pl E: 13,700 -
Interest income on bank deposits  SR1TFERZFIBUA 358 871
Waiver of liabilities of subsidiaries 1RIBERBEREME P
pursuant to deeds of settlement ~ MIBARIZ&E 20,068 =
Net gain on deconsolidation THEERNEARGE AR
of winding-up subsidiaries ZWEFE (H15t40)
(Note 40) 430,328 -
Sundry income WA 2,189 5,138
466,643 8,692
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON OTHER ASSETS 10. Rt EE 2 REHE
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Impairment loss on property, ME BEREEZ
plant and equipment (Note 17) HWEBE(HiF17) - 53,036
Impairment loss on intangible BVEEZREEBR
assets (Note 19) (Bfet19) - 48,647
Impairment loss on trade EWE SRR RERER
receivables (Note 21) (Btz21) 4,083 1,183
Impairment loss on other H {th fE U FNIE 2
receivables (Note) WEEE (H:7) 330,374 -
334,457 102,866
Note: Impairment loss on other receivables represents impairment Bt HiaEWEIE 2 REBBERR

loss on amounts due from winding-up subsidiaries of
the Group. The amounts due from these subsidiaries
amounting to approximately HK$330,374,000 were
considered to be fully impaired as these subsidiaries were
either dissolved or put into liquidation during the year

EAEEERKITEATZRK
BHREEBE BARZEHB
RAEHZE-_ZZN\F+=A
=+t HULEFECERSEE
It 49330,374,000% 7T 2 FE Ut

ended 31 December 2008. ZEWNBRARFIERSE BEE

B °
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZ—ZE\&+_-A=+—HItFE

11. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on: ATEEZHE
— bank and other borrowings —AREFAEH
wholly repayable within BEZRITR
five years Hifg s
— finance leases —REHE
Effective interest expense on RBRERZERZ
convertible loan notes EBRFERAX

12. PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Profit/(loss) for the year has been arrived at after charging/
(crediting):

Directors’ emoluments (Note 13) EEM% (F:£13)

Other staff costs H fth 8 TR
Share-based payments of Hith g 8 2 AR &
other employees B2 3K

Total employee benefits expense B B 4@ FIf X @5

Amortisation of intangible assets /& E 2 #
(included in operating expenses) (FTAZERX)

Auditors’ remuneration A

Cost of inventories recognised as  FEK AR A H
an expense

Depreciation of property, E RN B
plant and equipment ZITE

Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BER&E
plant and equipment ZIEE

Net foreign exchange (qains)/losses FEX, (Uzs) /B8 F5E
Product development expenditure ma 3% 2

1. BB AR

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx TAT
6,571 13,524
229 1,213
9,751 -
16,551 14,737

12. ZFEERR, (BE)

RERRN/ (BR)EMAR, /(G
A) NHIEIE

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
3,226 6,223
31,055 21,925
- 2,558
34,281 30,706
- 20,400

600 1,855
209,509 1,057,782
2,055 27,118

- 2,160

(215) 434

- 11,074




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BB ®RXMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZ—ZZT \F+-_A=+—HItFE

13.EEREEMS
ENSENFEESAZHMENT

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors
were as follows:

(a) Directors’ emoluments

(a) E5M=

Year ended 31 December 2008

BE-SENF+=A=+-

AIEFE

Other emoluments

Rft#e

Contributions

Salaries to retirement
and other benefits Total
Fees benefits schemes  emoluments
ek BHRER
He HipsEH HE ame
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER THER THER
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Malcolm Stephen Jacobs-Paton Malcolm Stephen
Jacobs-Paton 5 & - 1,089 11 1,100
Mr. Cheung Chi Wai REREE - 1,190 12 1,202
Mr. Zhu Guangping (Note (j) RETRE (M) - - - =
Mr. Peter Francis Amour (Note (i) BTELE (W) - 69 2 71
Non-executive directors FHTEE
Dato’ Dr. Wong Sin Just (Note (i) ~ SEEHREBL (M) - 109 114
Mr. Leung Shek Kong (Note (iv)) 2ENEE (W) 31 169 208
Mr. Mak Chee Bun (Note (v)) BHERE (W#w) 126 - - 126
Mr. Chan Kam Tim (Note (vi)) BBAEE (W) 30 - - 30
Independent non-executive directors BV HH7TEE
Dr. Hui Ka Wah Ronnie ARERE 110 - - 110
Mr. Ho Kwan Tat (Note (vii)) MEELE (i) 83 = = 83
Mr. Wong Kean Li (Note (i) ERERE (W) 60 - - 60
Mr. Thomas Chia (Note (ix), EnTEE (W) 27 - - 27
Mr. Edward Hungerford Edward Hungerford
Milward-Oliver (Note (x)) Milward-Oliver’t &
(Witx) 95 - - 95
562 2,626 38 3,226
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZ—ZZE\&+_-A=+—HItFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2007

13.EEREEME @)

(a) EZHE ()
BE-TTLE+-A=+-

AIEFE
Other emoluments
A2
Contributions
Salaries to retirement
and other ~ Share-based benefits Total
Fees benefits payments schemes  emoluments
ek iR A RikR
ik HrER  ERZAR stElfE M
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T TR T TR
Executive directors H1EE
Mr. Malcolm Stephen Jacobs-Paton Malcolm Stephen
Jacobs-Paton & - 2,660 - 12 2672
Mr. Peter Francis Amour EfEEE - 500 - 12 512
Mr. Leung Shek Kong R RE - 540 - 12 552
Dato’ Dr. Wong Sin Just (Note (i) SEEREET (W) - 93 - 2 %
Mr. Cheung Chi Wai (Note (xi) REREE (Wi - 1132 330 12 1,474
Non-executive directors HiEE
Mr. Chan Kam Tim (Note (vi) BBALE (Wim) 12 = - - 12
Mr. Mak Chee Bun (Note (v)) RYELE (W) 10 428 - 12 450
Independent non-executive directors BV AH/EE
Mr. Thomas Chia Brtik 9 - - - 9
Mr. Edward Hungerford Milward-Oliver ~ Edward Hungerford
Milward-Oliver’t & 72 - - - 72
Dr. Hui Ka Wah Ronnie (Note (i) FRERE (i) 1 - - - 1
M. Stanley Chan (Note (xii) RREBLE (W) 80 - - - 80
478 5,353 330 62 6,223
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZ-ZTZN\F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

13.EEREEME @)

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
Notes:
(i)  Appointed on 26 August 2008.
(i)  Resigned on 4 March 2008.
(iii) Appointed on 18 September 2007 and re-designated
from an executive director to a non-executive director

on 28 April 2008.

(iv) Re-designated from an executive director to a non-
executive director on 26 August 2008.

(v) Re-designated from an executive director to a non-
executive director on 22 November 2007 and resigned

on 24 February 2009.

(vi) Appointed on 22 November 2007 and resigned on 7
April 2008.

(vii) Appointed on 31 March 2008.
(viii) Appointed on 30 April 2008.

(ix) Resigned on 31 March 2008.

(x)  Resigned on 28 April 2008.

(xi) Appointed on 15 February 2007.
(xii) Appointed on 22 November 2007.

(xiii) Resigned on 22 November 2007.

No directors waived any emoluments during the years
ended 31 December 2008 and 2007.

(@) EH< (&)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii) 7

RZZZENFENAZ+H
EZT-o

RZZEZN\F= AMBAFIT -
RZZEZLFAATNAH
EXE R-_ZEZTNFHEA
“TtN\BHEHTEERAER
FHRITES -
RZZEZNFENA=F+H
HATESHEIRIENTE
%o
N_EZ+F+—-H+=
HE%ﬁ%%ﬂE%#%
TES RNZTENEZHA
ZTMBERHE -
RZBEZELE+—A=+=
HEZE R-ZZNEFDQ
AEB&E-
RZEZNF=H=+—H
EZE-o
RZEZENFEOA=+HE
EE -
RZEZENF=ZA=+—H
BHE o
RZZEENEFMA=F+N\H
ﬁ?E

N

A

T+E_A+hHEE
$t¢+ AZ+=

t¢+ Az=+=

m 3 m 3 Mh 3§

- =
m%ﬂ%% o A
m

BEEFNBE-TENFR-F
TLET-A=T-RLEEHE
EAMS -
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, two (2007: two) were directors of the
Company whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures above. The emoluments of the remaining
three (2007: three) individuals were as follows:

13.EEREEME @)

(b) EEME

EREERERaME AL
ER WA (ZEZSLF W
R)BARBICES Hile
R EXFER2ERP - H
BREZFH(ZETLF =R A

Salaries and other benefits
Contributions to retirement
benefits schemes

Their emoluments were within
the following bands:

HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to
HK$1,500,000

TZBMemT :
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
HehHEMmEF 1,195 3,993
RIKB GBI 58
13 36
1,208 4,029
2008 2007
BEZMEHENT -
T T2 1,000,000 7T 3 -
1,000,001 TR
1,500,000/ 7T - 3

During the year ended 31 December 2008, two
of the five highest paid individuals were paid an
amount of approximately HK$717,000 (2007:
HK$614,000), excluding salaries and other benefits,
as compensation for loss of office.

RBEE_EENF+-_A=+—H
tFE AARRFATZZESX
FE&8EH717,0008 T (Z 5+
F:614,00087T) T EEHFERHE
s - ERBEBmE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZ-ZTZN\F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14. FIBH X H

Current tax: BIEATIA
Hong Kong Profits Tax BAEMER

Under-provision in prior year EERETE
Overseas income tax for the year ~ ANFE/BIMNTEHR

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2007:
17.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year.
Overseas income tax is calculated at the rates prevailing in
the relevant jurisdictions.

On 26 June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed the Revenue Bill 2008 and reduced corporate profit
tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5% which is effective from the
year of assessment 2008/2009.

On 16 March 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the
PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law") by Order
No. 63 of the President of the PRC. On 6 December 2007,
the State Council issued Implementation Regulation of the
New Law. The New Law and Implementation Regulation
changed the tax rate of the PRC subsidiary to 25% from 1
January 2008 onwards.

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx THT

1 —

- 665

1 665

BENBRIOBRBEAFE 2 EFTE
AR R E16.5% (ZET L+
F:175%) 58  BINAEH IR
EREREBZATHENE

RZZEZNESAZFTA~B &
VB 3OX € 1B B (20084 I A 5 I &
) BEEAMESHEHITS%T
HE165% B-_TE)N\/-FTF
NERBEFERER -

R-ET+E=ZA+8 HER
BRBEESE3FRMRELE
FTeflE ([HBZE]) RZ2Z L
F+-_A~H - BBERBAEHHE
BB e o $THOE R B i 1K B B
—EEN\F-A—BREHEKIE
NAK RN E25% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #Z —

%W R MR

TENEHASt-BLEE

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

15.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit/
(loss) per the consolidated income statement as follows:

Profit/(loss) before tax

Tax at the domestic income tax
rate of 16.5% (2007: 17.5%)

Tax effect of expenses not
deductible for tax purpose
Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose

Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised

Tax effect of tax losses not
recognised

Effect of different tax rates of
overseas subsidiaries

Under-provision in prior year

Tax charge for the year

DIVIDENDS

BRIEAEN, (E5HR)

BAHAEHE16.5%

(ZZEZ+F 1 17.5%)

SHE A
RIS LT RER 2
TR E
ERBEETETIBZ
WAZBHBTE

ERABAARER
HIEEE
AERZREBE L
Hsgre

BN ENEIRN G S
B

EFEBETR

AFEEHIAX

No dividend was paid or proposed during the years ended

31 December 2008 and 2007.

14. PR H @
AEERETHRGARFERZE

Fl/ (BB) 2HEREMT
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
78,814 (385,199)
13,004 (67,410)
20,642 72,313
(40,414) (3,374)
(50) (1,563)
8,046 3,896
(1,228) (3,197)
1 —
1 665

15. R &

BE_ZT/\FR-_ZTLF+-
A=+T-HLEEYERNRES
IR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BB ®RXMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZ—ZT \F+-_A=+—HItFE

16. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 16. BREBF/ (B#E)
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per ARG EBRBRAZEE ARRERE
share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the AREBERRN,(EE) HIREUT
Company is based on the following data: HiEsE
Earnings 27 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET

Earnings/(loss) for the purpose of FRiTEEREARRF
basic earnings/(loss) per share (B18) 2aH/ (B8)

(profit/(loss) for the year (RRARIEAFE ARG
attributable to equity holders AEERF,/ (BE))
of the Company) 78,813 (385,809)
Effect of dilutive potential BrEERRz#EETE
ordinary shares:
Interest on convertible loan notes FJEKREREE 2 5 8 9,751 -
Fair value change on conversion ~ AIRRERZE 2 NE
options embedded in BREZ
convertible loan notes NEEEE (5,326) -
Earnings/(loss) for the purpose of RiTEEREERF,
diluted earnings/(loss) per share (JE?T ) 2w, (E18) 83,238 (385,809)
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16. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued)
Number of shares BB EHE

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose
of basic earnings/(loss) per share  FH#

Effect of dilutive potential BELAR #E
ordinary shares:
Share options ke
Convertible loan notes R EREE

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose
of diluted earnings/(loss)
per share

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the computation
of diluted earnings per share did not assume the exercise
of the outstanding share options of the Company as these
share options have an anti-dilutive effect on the basic
earnings per share for the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the computation
of diluted loss per share did not assume the exercise of
the outstanding share options of the Company since their
exercise would result in a decrease in loss per share.

ARGt ESRERAN,/
(B518) < & B 0

pg
=

I

ARG ESREFRN,/
(B18) 2 & 3@ B ¥ 19 2

16. ERER (F#E) @)

2008 2007

'000 '000

TR T %
1,057,649 677,752
448,974 -
1,506,623 677,752

RBE-_TTN\F+-_A=1+—H
EEEME  ARADRAZKRITE
BREHAFEZBRERRNA
REEXE RAUELFESREER
MEEBRRZSERETSETE

RBE-_TTLF+-A=1+—H
EEEME  ARADRAZKRITE
BREETESSIAERERR
b RtstEEREEERR IR
RZEERETGETRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZ—ZT \F+-_A=+—HItFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. 9% -BERRE

Furniture, Telephone

Leasehold  fixtures and

improve- and computer

Plant and ments equipment  systems Motor

machinery HE  HA- EFER  vehicles Total
BERME WXL XERRE EREA nE agE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr ThAr Texr TEr  TAT  TER

Cost S
At 1 January 2007 R-EZ+E—H—H 110,319 269 6,644 71,946 2,843 128,021
Exchange adjustments HNEHE - - 35 114 46 195
Additions NE 6,429 - 3,513 309 939 11,190
Disposals HE - (50)  (5507)  (2,996) - (8553
At 31 December 2007 RZZZ+E+-A=+-H 116,748 219 4,685 5,373 3,828 130,853
Exchange adjustments HNERE 38 - 135 2 65 240
Additions NE 964 - 3,596 - 470 5,030
Disposals k3 (116,191) - (651)  (3,246) - (120,088)
Deconsolidation of TBEERHELR
winding-up SN
subsidiaries (344) - (288) (2,129 (854) (3,615)
At 31 December 2008 RZZEN\F+ZA=1-H 1215 219 7,477 - 3509 12,420
Depreciation and mERSH
impairment
At 1 January 2007 R-EZE+F—-F—H 37,892 175 5,528 5,659 2,079 51,333
Exchange adjustments MNERE - - 17 87 32 136
Provided for the year REEEE 25,820 33 281 504 480 27,118
Impairment loss recognised E BB EEE 53,036 - - - - 53,03
Eliminated on disposals ~ HEBH - (190 (4,831  (1,543) - (6,393 103
At 31 December 2007 RZEZLETZA=T-B 116,748 189 995 4,707 2,591 125230
Exchange adjustments MERE - 5 - (3) (1) 1
Provided for the year KEERE 252 25 1,285 - 493 2,055
Eliminated on disposals &R (116,191) - 82)  (2,969) - (119,242) i
Eliminated on RAERBEAEL R “j
deconsolidation of RANRmE "
winding-up subsidiaries (251) - (96)  (1,735) (644)  (2,726) "
At 31 December 2008 RZEZN\FT-A=T-H 558 219 2,102 - 2,439 5,318 2
Carrying amounts REE 2
At 31 December 2008 RZZEN\F+ZA=1-H 657 - 5375 - 1,070 7,102
=

At 31 December 2007 RZZZLE+_A=1-H = 30 3,690 666 1,237 5,623
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17.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates
per annum:

20% - 30%

Over the shorter of
the term of the
lease, or 15%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 15%

Telephone and computer systems 30%

Motor vehicles 20% - 30%

Plant and machinery
Leasehold improvements

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group
carried out a review of the recoverable amount of the
Group’s plant and machinery in view of the significant
operating losses incurred by the Group. The review led to
the recognition of an impairment loss of approximately
HK$53,036,000 which was recognised in profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2007. The recoverable
amount of the relevant assets was determined on the basis
of their value in use. The discount rate used in measuring
value in use was 12% per annum.

At 31 December 2008 and 2007, the carrying amount of
plant and machinery held under finance leases was nil as
these assets had been fully impaired as of 31 December
2007.

17. 9% - BERRE @

LamE - BERKREBERBEZEAT
FRABRETERE

B K i 25 20%Z30%

HEMEEE EHEBHES
H15% 2
RE&E

B EERRE  15%
EaENEMESR 30%
R 20%%E30%

RBEE-ZETZE+F+-RA=+—H
HFEE ERAEEREAELE
B AEERAAEBIHER
Rz RESE  YARREZE
—EE+F+-_A=1+—BUIEHFE
Z 1B 3% TR 4953,036,00078 7T 2 R
@%Eoﬁ%ﬁ?ZT%@éﬁ%
BETREEMETE -NFAELEH
BEREACHREATF12% -

R_BENER_ZZBLF+_H
=T—B RREBERTHAIER
FREELERERT AR%ZS
ﬁ?#_vvti-l— A=+—H
BERE2HAEE
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18. INTEREST IN/TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES FROM A JOINTLY CONTROLLED

ENTITY H i e W k18
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FET
Cost of unlisted investment FELETHRE 2 44,357 44,357
Share of post-acquisition DN B R ER (A7)
losses (Note) (44,357) (44,357)
Details of the Group’s jointly controlled entity at 31 RZEZNF+_A=+—H" 'K
December 2008 are as follows: EBESE AR ZHEBIT

Name of entity

AENALH

Shenzhen Guo Wei
Electronics Co., Ltd
("Guo Wei")

RN EF
BERAR ([ER])

Form of
business
structure

EBRBEN

Limited
liability
company

AREEAT

18. R—EEER
W—EEELARNEZRAR

CPZ 594

Proportion of nominal

Place of value of registered
registration/ capital indirectly
operation held by the Group
il FEEBRERAL
REmE AMERZEELH
The PRC 46%
i

Principal activities

=

REER

Manufacture of

B

telephone and
related products
EE M AEE
i
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18. INTEREST IN/TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES FROM A JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITY (continued)

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group's jointly controlled entity (which is accounted
for using the equity method), based on its unaudited
management accounts is set out below:

Non-current assets FERBEE
Current assets MENEE
Current liabilities mEAE
Income WA
Expenses A

Loss for the year attributable to ~ AEBELEAREE

the Group B8
Net assets attributable to AREEELEE
the Group FE

Note: The Group has discontinued recognising its share of
further losses of Guo Wei once the Group’s share of losses
of Guo Wei equals the Group’s interest in Guo Wei. If Guo
Wei subsequently reports profits, the Group will resume
recognising its share of those profits only after its share of
the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

18. R—HEE AR 2R B
K-HEERRAESZRAK
H o B IRKOR ()
BEAEESERRAZARERE
BRE BRZARYAESES
ERECHBERBREINMT

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
86,053 184,980
283,959 104,293
(427,806) (935,921)
687,877 991,402

(695,191) (1,162,053)

Wit : AEBEREHERZEBERE
NAREEBER C ERE - &
LRAEEEBRZE—FE
B-EBRAREEEN &
SEREREERENBAZRA
RAZEEBERRERIE
BlEZZFmM e
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18. INTEREST IN/TRADE AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES FROM A JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITY (continued)
The amounts of unrecognised share of loss of Guo Wei,

based on its unaudited management accounts, are as
follows:

Unrecognised share of loss of REEAREREN
a jointly controlled entity —fAEERFZ
for the year B8

Cumulative unrecognised share of ~R&tAMERENL
losses of a jointly —HE&aERARZ
controlled entity B8

Trade and other receivables from the jointly controlled
entity represent the net balance arising from purchase of
goods from Guo Wei, purchase of raw materials on behalf
of Guo Wei and sale of goods to Guo Wei. The amount is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

At 31 December 2008, the amount due from the jointly
controlled entity (before provision for impairment) was
approximately HK$212,941,000 (2007: HK$209,858,000).
In view of the continued operating losses incurred by the
jointly controlled entity, an additional impairment loss of
approximately HK$3,083,000 (2007: HK$209,858,000)
in respect of the amount due from the jointly controlled
entity was recognised by the Group for the year, as a result
of which the amount due from the jointly controlled entity
was fully impaired. The Group does not hold any collateral
over this balance. The Group takes into consideration the
present value of the estimated future cash flows expected
to receive when determining the impairment loss.

18. R—HEE AR 2R B

K-EEERRAESZRARK
H ft F& W R E ()

BREERAEEREERE K
HREAERZBEREENT

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
(3,364) (78,499)
(160,894) (157,530)

BUAERRESRRALEMER
FRERKABEREEER KKE
BB RE R B e 1A B B 5 B B
MEAZEHRFE ZeBAEE
- R B RARBRAKER

RZEZNE+-_A=+—H
WZeERAr 2 RIB (R R ER
) #/4212,941,0008 T (ZEF
+ % : 209,858,000 7T) ° &M %
BERAFEERERZE ERAN
T5 T R %8 51 R 1B /5 18 493,083,000
B (ZZEZ+F 1 209,858,000/
) Al BRZEERRIZK
HEL2HRE - NEBEWE I
HERFAEMERR AKER
TREBERSZEEDE I
et RRBE R 2HE -
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

19. B & &

Product
development
expenditure

EmMARXH
HK$'000
FHT
Cost B
At 1 January 2007, R-_ZEZTLF—-—H—H"
31 December 2007 and “EEEFETA=T—HK
31 December 2008 —EENF+ZA=1—H 234,477
Amortisation and impairment B RRE
At 1 January 2007 R-_ZETt+F—H—H 165,430
Impairment loss recognised EERBEEE 48,647
Provided for the year REFHR 20,400
At 31 December 2007 and RZZEZLF+ZA=T—BRK
31 December 2008 R-ZZZN\F+-_H=+—H 234,477
Carrying amounts REE

At 31 December 2007 and 2008

Product development expenditure was amortised on a
straight-line basis over a period of three years.

At 31 December 2007, the Group carried out a review
of the recoverable amount of the intangible assets
representing capitalised product development expenditure
as the production of the relevant products had been
suspended. The review led to the recognition of an
impairment loss of approximately HK$48,647,000 which
was recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2007.

20. INVENTORIES

Inventories, representing finished goods, were carried at
cost.

20.

R_BELFER_FFENE+_A=1—H -

EmMELABRED = FHH -

RZZEZ+F+-_A=+—H" 'K
SERGEEFEE (RREEARL
JEMARIH) 2AKESE -
Elﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%&'ﬂﬂﬁﬁ I B it
RBEE-EE+F+-_A=+—H
EFE Z?a 32 #4948,647,00078
TTZREEE -

BE
FE (&K m) IR -
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21. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 2. EWES R  BREER
H i fE W FIE

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHER FET

Trade and bills receivables EWE Z AR ERERE 5,266 6,730

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts J& : FRER#E & (5,266) (1,183)

- 5,547

Tax reserve certificates AR 4,177 3,601
Other receivables, net of allowance EfhERFIE @ Mk REREE

for doubtful debts 2,060 2,561

Total trade, bills and WE FER  BUREEK
other receivables Hib U IR 2 258 6,237 11,709

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills
receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts) at the
balance sheet date:

0 - 30 days EE=1H
31 - 60 days =t+—ZF,TH
61 — 90 days ANT—ZEATH
Over 90 days NTBRE

The average credit period on sales of goods is 90 days.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. Credit limits attributed to customers
are reviewed by management.

ERRENE 55 RREREE (1
BREEE) REEAZERA
mF -

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$°000
TR TET

- 279
- 41
- 4,550
- 677

- 5,547

HEEm FHEENANLTAE -
AREREREMHELAIE T
MERPZEEERYARHZE
PZEERE -ZEFESNEERER
BHEEER -
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21.

22,

TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

Balance at beginning of the year ~ RE)Z &5k \
Impairment losses recognised on U E 5 Rz EHER
trade receivables HEEE

Balance at end of the year RE#E 2 R

At 31 December 2008, the Group had provided for
impairment loss against the individually impaired trade
receivables, all of which were aged over 90 days and were
past due at the balance sheet date. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

TRADE RECEIVABLES WITH INSURANCE
COVERAGE

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables with
insurance coverage at the balance sheet date:

0 - 30 days TE=1H
31 - 60 days =+—F,XTH
- 90 days ANtT—HEATH

In order to draw the Group's trade receivables in advance,
the Group borrowed from the banks and arranged
insurance coverage on the trade receivables from the
Group's major customers. The Group had assigned
the right to receive the proceeds from the receivables
and the insurance compensation to the banks. The
trade receivables and the advances drawn thereon are
derecognised upon settlement from the customers or
receipt from the insurance compensation if the customers
do not make the settlement.

At 31 December 2007, the Group had concentration of
credit risk as 52% and 52% of the total trade receivables
with insurance coverage were due from the Group's
largest customer and the five largest customers within the
geographical segment of Western Europe, respectively.

21.

22.

BREZERNR BRRER

H 1t FE WA (8
SERHEZ2E
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000
Fib Fi#
1,183 =
4,083 1,183
5,266 1,183
R-EEAELT-A=—B &
T

< —'—
EM%‘J/WEZJEHQ%Z%EEM
T’Eﬁ/@MEJEETE%éﬁ ARTIA R
REBENTH ﬁﬁ\,uﬁéEIE%«t
H)Hiﬁ o REE I UL T E BRI
BEAERR

ERRZERE SRR
SEANER

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'00_0
FET FBTT

34,086
74,912
35,588

144,586

%%Eﬁm
mg Syt
)é!

7]

ST N
SRR B w0
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&?ESEFH&T%EEM
SRR S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZ—ZT \F+-_A=+—HItFE

23. BILLS RECEIVABLE DISCOUNTED WITH FULL
RECOURSE

The following is an aged analysis of bills receivable

discounted with full recourse at the balance sheet date:

0 - 30 days TE=1H
31 - 60 days =+—Z=x+H
- 90 days AtT—BEATH

Bills receivable discounted with full recourse and the
advances drawn on bills receivable discounted with full
recourse will be derecognised when the banks received
cash from the customers. On derecognition of bills
receivable discounted with full recourse, the difference
between their carrying amounts and the cash received by

the banks is recognised in profit or loss.

24. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES

AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range

from 1.9% to 2.6% (2007: 1.8% to 2.4%) per annum.

At 31 December 2007, pledged bank deposits represented
deposits pledged to a bank to secure short-term loans and
were therefore classified as current assets. At 31 December
2007, the pledged bank deposits carried floating interest
rate which ranged from 4.6% to 5.1% per annum. The
pledged bank deposits were released upon the settlement
of relevant bank borrowings during the year ended 31

December 2008.

23.

24,

OEESEEY 4 T
=i

FRMA2HERBLRUBMER
BREEBZREAMWT :

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TAT

- 12,086
17,123
- 1,600

- 30,809

ERTEFPUBEER A2
HEREERUHRZERBXH
BEEERBCERKBEARE LR
TR BUBHER - BURRERK B 2@
EREZERWHRRERRE  Hk@
@ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂZﬁ@%%%%Eﬁ

JIIl 7J°

BEARITER RITER
ERE

SRITHEBRIEMIH A K B - FH X
F1.9%%226% (ZEZE+F:1.8%
F2.4%) °

R_EZ+F+-_A=+—H" ' E
BREOTEREADNBSERERM
RRITHEB 2T B IERD
BE - R_ZZ+F+-_A=1+—
E BEBBITERIRZEA R
CEF RN TFL6%E5.1% ° B
%i_Q?A¢+ A=+—A1L
FE BERFRITEACNEBIR
TRESERERR -
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables JERTE B ERR
Other payables and accrued HoAth & - 3B I
charges FEET & A

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the

balance sheet date:

0 - 30 days TE=+H
31 - 60 days =t+—ZE,t1H
61 — 90 days ANT—ZEATH
Over 90 days N+BRE

26.

27.

ADVANCES DRAWN ON TRADE RECEIVABLES
WITH INSURANCE COVERAGE AND
ADVANCES DRAWN ON BILLS RECEIVABLE
DISCOUNTED WITH FULL RECOURSE

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the interest
on the Group's advances drawn on trade receivables with
insurance coverage and advances drawn on bills receivable

discounted with full recourse were charged at variable
rates ranging from 6.6% to 7.3% per annum.

AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS AND
MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts due to directors are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

The amounts due to minority shareholders were
unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed repayment
terms.

25. BB 5 MR A H A FE 4 K

8
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT TAT
4,870 205,579
36,453 91,135
41,323 296,714

FRARNESRFXNEE R ZIRK

AT
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT T
- 49,978
- 54,593
- 49,882
4,870 51,126
4,870 205,579

26. AXCRGEEREZ KRR
BRREAXHAEZEERE
ZEBHERRE 2B

RBE-_ZT+F+-_A=+—H
HEE AEEZBEIERREK
BHRRZBRRELHAELEEA
RREZEWBBRERE 2SR ZH S
BN F6.6%%27.3%2 )% 8 F F X

E+ /%\ °

27. ERESERDBRRRE

BNESFEASERN RERA

RERAEERE -

EANLPBRRFEARERR 28

BB SR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 R=—ZZ\F+_-A=+—H

28. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 28. REMEER N 2EH
The Group leased certain of its plant and machinery under AEEREREMNERNRAEST
finance leases. The average lease term is three years (2007: BER#E - HBATHR=F (=
three years). Interest rates underlying all obligations under EE+F ZF) - EMERE
finance leases are either fixed or variable at respective BETEEZHEBINZRZARESE Z
contract dates ranging from 4.51% to 5.91% (2007: SN CEEHBEN T451%
4.51% to 7.49%) per annum. No arrangements have been E591% (ZEZLF 1 451%%E
entered into for contingent rental payments. 7.49%) 2 FEBMEK 2 SEERE

FAHE T LEMLHE -

Present value

Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
REHS REHEERAE
2008 2007 2008 2007

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR THT TR TET

Amounts payable under MEMEET
finance leases: LN B -
Within one year —FR 1,629 8,789 1,597 8,462
In more than one year but not BiB—FETE
more than two years M - 1,697 - 1,657
1,629 10,486
Less: future finance charges B RRREEHR (32) (367)
Present value of MEBKHRE
lease obligations 1,597 10,119 1,597 10,119 113
Less: Amount due for B —FREH
settlement within one B8 2 508
year (shown under (BRI E
current liabilities) a1&) (1,597) (8,462) 0
H—
Amount due for settlement —FRIHER o
after one year = - 1,657 1
The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured AEBEREBEBRT 2ER - I
by the lessor's charge over the leased assets. HHEAREEEE 2 BMMERR -

Annual Report 2008
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29.

30.

BANK BORROWINGS

B BEA

Trust receipt loans, unsecured Ede

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the loans
carried interest at variable rates and were due for
settlement within one year of the balance sheet date. The
effective interest rate on the Group’s trust receipt loans
was 7.35% per annum.

CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES

The Convertible Notes

Pursuant to a conditional best effort placing agreement
dated 13 December 2007 entered into between the
Company and SBI E2-Capital (HK) Limited (as the placing
agent), the placing of the three-year 0.5% coupon
convertible notes in an aggregate principal amount
of HK$67,900,000 (the “Convertible Notes”) was
completed on 28 March 2008. The gross proceeds
from the placing of the Convertible Notes amounted to
approximately HK$67,900,000 which were intended to
be deployed as general working capital. The Convertible
Notes are secured by a charge over the 46% equity
interest held indirectly by the Company in Guo Wei.

The Convertible Notes bear interest at the rate of 0.5%
per annum payable annually in arrears, and are convertible
into the Company’s ordinary shares at an initial conversion
price of HK$0.10 per conversion share (subject to
adjustments) at any time starting from 90 days after the
date of issue until the maturity date. The maturity date
of the Convertible Notes will be the date falling on the
third anniversary of the date of issue. Any unredeemed
and unconverted Convertible Notes shall be redeemed at
100% of the outstanding principal amount in cash.

The Company is entitled, by giving at least 30 business
days’ written notice to the holders of the Convertible
Notes to redeem the outstanding principal amount of the
Convertible Notes (in whole or in part).

On 16 July 2008, the Convertible Notes with principal
amount of HK$15,300,000 were converted at the
conversion price of HK$0.10 per share, resulting in the
issue of 153,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.
On 12 and 29 August 2008, the Convertible Notes with
aggregate principal amount of HK$34,000,000 were
converted at the conversion price of HK$0.10 per share,
resulting in the issue of 340,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each.

29.

30. A

RITEE
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHR FT
- 25,400
WHE-ZTLE+-A=+—6
LEE  BERNIBARTS ¥
NEE RS — A MEE &
P Pl e | LIk
#7.35% °©
THRRERE
TRREE

REEE S o AIMIREBUAR

IR ¥ AR A &) E2SBI E2-Capital (HK)
Limited (EAEEERE) R _ZZ
tFE+= H+ BRI 2B §KH
BEIREGZ EEXSBEAR
memom%ﬁZ‘i%S%gﬁ
HRBREE ((TRREE]) —FE
R_EENF=A-_+NHZEK
REMRRER 2B FIELEL
467,900,000/ 7T Tyt B B {E —
NG
WA B B 46 % IR A E 25 3% 7
Z IR EH AR o
AR EZEBEETF05%2 Fl K&t
B BABFENE YA RETHE
RANTHE BEEIHHARILEZ
ERIERR - & &R E®KZR70.10
BLZNEHBRE (A FARE) &
BMERRRLEER AT RER 2
FEBEgASTHRENR=-BEF
2 B o fE{A] A BB [ 75 AR A A 2 7] 4
BREBBENRERABEASEZ
100%HE [A] °
RAREEBBRANTEREERFEA
ABHELP=ZTEEZXANERR
MMEBERTRBREE s ABELAS
(2 EPeEhn) o
RZZEZNEFELA+AA K%
%8 /515,300,000/8 T 2 Al IR Z 1
ERERI0B T2 RREBRAE
AR A7) A Itk % 17153,000,0000% &
BEEIOE T ZERR -RN_F
ENENAT+ZBR=_TAB K
% # %8 534,000,000/ 7T 7 7] # i}
=iE 0 R ER0.10E T 2 AR ER
% $@Tl%¥ﬁ%0%0%%ﬁ
FREE0.10/E T 2 L MmAR -
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30. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (continued)

The Fully Underwritten Bonds

Pursuant to a conditional fully underwritten placing
agreement dated 11 July 2008 entered into between
the Company and Tanrich Capital Limited (as the placing
agent), the placing of the three-year 0.5% coupon
unsecured convertible bonds in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$50,000,000 (the “Fully Underwritten
Bonds”) was completed on 2 October 2008. The gross
proceeds from the placing of the Fully Underwritten Bonds
amounted to approximately HK$50,000,000 which were
intended to be deployed as debt repayment and general
working capital.

The Fully Underwritten Bonds bear interest at the rate
of 0.5% per annum payable annually in arrears, and are
convertible into the Company’s ordinary shares at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.10 per conversion share (subject
to adjustments) at any time after the date of issue to the
maturity date. The maturity date of the Fully Underwritten
Bonds will be the date falling on the third anniversary of
the date of issue. Any unredeemed and unconverted Fully
Underwritten Bonds shall be redeemed at 100% of the
outstanding principal amount in cash.

At the request of the Company, the Fully Underwritten
Bonds may be early redeemed at the outstanding principal
amount of the Fully Underwritten Bonds (in whole or in
part) at any time by giving at least 30 business days’ prior
written notice to the holder(s) of the Fully Underwritten
Bonds. The holder(s) of the Fully Underwritten Bonds can
within 15 business days after the date of the notice of
early redemption convert any outstanding amount of the
Fully Underwritten Bonds in multiples of HK$10,000 into
the conversion shares at the conversion price. Upon the
expiry of 15 business days after the date of the notice
of early redemption, the Company shall redeem the
outstanding principal amount of the Fully Underwritten
Bonds as set out in the notice of early redemption.

30. TRREMRFEE (#)

RHEBEES

BREARBDEIUTHBERR QA
(EAREERB)R=_ZZNEFELA
T—BIUZBERHEEZAEBELES
W& - BdE A< % % 450,000,000
BILZ ZFH05%ZE B EIKAT
BREF((2EEHEES]) B2
RZEENF+A-BEK -BEE
HBHEFR B RBERENE
50,000,000/ 7T - JhEt Bl BIEE &
R—HREEES -

HEHEFEETF0S5% X
AR ABENE LAIRETH
HEZNHA/ILEZEFAKHEA -
RERRKI 70108 T 2 T B
BEMTRAR)BR/AREE R
B-2EBHEFZIHAKLHE
THHESR=BEF 2B - Ef K
BRMARAKRZ2HEBHEFBA
REWMAREBEREE2100%EME -

EARRNRER  ARAIAJABRZ
HEHEEFFBEAZELRL = T@
%3 B R E BB AR E AR
AZEZEPHEEF L REERNSSE
(2 FH) RFERZ2EEH
BF ZHBHESFHEATRE
FERBANEHEn T REEXEA
N ZEREKEZABEESZF
MAEEARSE (AK10,000% T
ZEE)BRR RREEELRBAA
o i ol R = K R /N
BELDRFELBNMIZZEE
HEHFZKREERSE -
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30. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (continued) 30. TRRERERE &)

N
N
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FRAEEERAHF

Suncorp Technologies Limited

The Best Effort Bonds

Pursuant to a conditional best effort placing agreement
dated 11 July 2008 entered into between the Company
and Tanrich Capital Limited (as the placing agent),
the placing of the three-year 0.5% coupon unsecured
convertible bonds in an aggregate principal amount
of HK$13,620,000 (the “Best Effort Bonds”) was
completed on 16 December 2008. The gross proceeds
from the placing of the Best Effort Bonds amounted to
approximately HK$13,620,000 which were intended to be
deployed as debt repayment and general working capital.

The Best Effort Bonds bear interest at the rate of 0.5%
per annum payable annually in arrears, and are convertible
into the Company’s ordinary shares at an initial conversion
price of HK$0.10 per conversion share (subject to
adjustments) at any time after the date of issue to the
maturity date. The maturity date of the Best Effort Bonds
will be the date falling on the third anniversary of the date
of issue. Any unredeemed and unconverted Best Effort
Bonds shall be redeemed at 100% of the outstanding
principal amount in cash.

At the request of the Company, the Best Effort Bonds may
be early redeemed at the outstanding principal amount
of the Best Effort Bonds (in whole or in part) at any time
by giving at least 30 business days' prior written notice
to the holder(s) of the Best Effort Bonds. The holder(s) of
the Best Effort Bonds can within 15 business days after
the date of the notice of early redemption convert any
outstanding amount of the Best Effort Bonds in multiples
of HK$10,000 into the conversion shares at the conversion
price. Upon the expiry of 15 business days after the date
of the notice of early redemption, the Company shall
redeem the outstanding principal amount of the Best
Effort Bonds as set out in the notice of early redemption.

On 18 December 2008, the entire Best Effort Bonds with
principal amount of HK$13,620,000 were converted at
the conversion price of HK$0.10 per share, resulting in the
issue of 136,200,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.

BHEH

BREARBDEIUTHBERR R A
(EAREERB)R_ZZTNELA
T—BIUZBERHEEZAEBELES
W& BB AL %% 513,620,000
BILZ ZFH05%ZE B EIKAT
BREHF((RHEH]) —FER
—EENF+ A+ NBER -
EENEBEHF B HRERENR
13,620,000 7T * hEt Bl AEEE
R—HREEES -

BNEFREF05%LHNEGTE -
ABFENE YARBETEHEE
AHMARIEZEMBREA - &K
AR 20,1078 7T 2 M 5 (B (7]
THE)EBRSARREAR -&
NEFBBMERRETHRER
m=BF B - ERABELQFRE
BeBNEFANREETRAREER
T Z2100%EME -

FEARDAERK - KRB A EBRAE
NEFBEABLHRL=THEER
A8 % 5% & E B A M IR R
BNEFCABEASE (28
) REBEENGES -BNE
SRAEATNERBERBNAHEK
MTREZXER  KRRESSE
NEHZEANREERASE (AR
10,0008 7T Z fF 8) B - N2 F
BEABAMAHE R TRAEZRA
& - A7) B [ 2 5 7R R AP
NZBNEFZREEAESE -

RZZEENFEF+_A+NAB &
% % 513,620,000 T 2 2 EE
BEHEREBR.I10BTTZ RRER
B% - A2 &) A I #47136,200,0008%
BREEI0EITL BB -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 R=—ZZ\F+_-A=+—H

30. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (continued)

The net proceeds received from the issue of the convertible
loan notes contain the following components that are
required to be separately accounted for in accordance
with HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Presentation”
and HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”:

(i) Liability component of the convertible loan notes
which is carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method; and

(i) Conversion options embedded in the convertible
loan notes (representing the noteholders’ options
to convert the convertible loan notes into equity of
the Company) which are separately accounted for
as derivative financial liabilities and measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss.

The directors of the Company had assessed the fair
values of the early redemption options embedded in the
convertible loan notes (representing the Company’s option
to early redeem the convertible loan notes) and considered
their fair values were insignificant.

30. TRREMRFEE (#)

EETI R EREE MU E 2 B
BREFEESUATIHNG  ARIE
EEQHEENHKI&MIT A :
2 RBBLTENER IS/
TR BERARFEIMIAAE:

() FAERRERREIAEDHMN
ERNERRBHEARATE
K

(i) AIMBERREZ AEREE
REZBEFAEAUTHATRKRE
REBERKAR R D2
B DRiTEERaBmy
FAAK ZRVEFE mMA
FEEFNEDER

ARREERFETARE RS
ZNEREMEE (READFT
R REE T RBERERE 7R EE)
ZATE RARBATELTFE
*x o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REe M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 N —ZZN\F+-A=+—8H

30. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (continued) 30. TR REFEE (&)
The movements of the liability component of the RREFREBR 2 AESNNER
convertible loan notes for the year are set out below: ZEEHFIWT
The Best The Fully The
Effort Underwritten  Convertible
Bonds Bonds Notes Total
BNEx 2EEHEF TEREE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THT THT
Liability component at dates RETRE 8 EH R
of issue (net of issue costs) (NBREEATRA) 8,094 29,110 22,959 60,163
Conversion into shares ghaRin (8,218) - (22,733) (30,951)
Interest charged MEZH 124 1,419 8,208 9,751
Interest payable FERII 8 - (62) (71) (133)
Liability component RZEENF+ZA
at 31 December 2008 =T—BZEEHH - 30,467 8,363 38,830
The movements of the conversion options embedded in MR ERZE 7 NEBRKRENE
the convertible loan notes for the year are set out below: A7 BEEL W :
The Best The Fully The
Effort Underwritten  Convertible
Bonds Bonds Notes Total
BNEx 2EEHEF TEREE act
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET T T
Fair value at dates of issue RETEBZAYE 5,402 20,148 44,109 69,659
Conversion into shares BRERH (5,402) - (31,441) (36,843)
Changes in fair value recognised RERRERLATE
in profit or loss 2 - 2,542 (7,868) (5,326)
Fair value at 31 December 2008 RIZZNETZA
=t—B2AVE - 22,690 4,800 27,490




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 R=—ZZ\F+_-A=+—H

30. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (continued)

The fair values of the conversion options embedded in the
convertible loan notes were determined at the respective
dates of issue, at each conversion date and at the balance
sheet date using the binomial model by reference to an
independent professional valuation. The inputs into the

model were as follows:

The Best Effort Bonds
sSHEF

Principal amount of
the Best Effort Bonds
Share price
Conversion price
Expected life (Note (a))
Risk-free interest rate (Note (b))
Expected volatility (Note (c))
Fair value of the conversion
options embedded in
the Best Effort Bonds

BNEFZAER

B8

BRE

REBHEY (Hit@)

ERBRME (HaEb))

TRERE (Hit(c))

BHEFZAERBEZ
AFE

30. TRAREREE (@)

AMEERERE AERKEND
FE- DRAERTEY RNEH
BREBRREEAN _EAERE
FoETE2EBUEEMEK
AZBEAZHEAT

At date of issue

RBTAM

HK$13,620,000
HK$0.06
HK$0.10

3 years 3%F
1.07%
126.2%

HK$5,402,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 N —ZZN\F+-A=+—8H

30. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (continued) 30. TRBREREE (8
At 31
December 2008
The Fully Underwritten Bonds At date of issue R=BENF
2HEHES R&TAH T+T=-A=t—H
Principal amount of the Fully FEBEESF AT
Underwritten Bonds HK$50,000,000 HK$50,000,000
Share price RE HK$0.07 HK$0.05
Conversion price BRE HK$0.10 HK$0.10
Expected life (Note (a)) HEHAERE (fit(a) 3 years 34 2.75 years 2.75%
Risk-free interest rate (Note (b))  ERMFIZX (Hf:7b)) 2.055% 0.786%
Expected volatility (Note (c)) TBHIRIR (Mit(c) 103% 126.52%
Fair value of the conversion FEBHEES < AERK
options embedded in the G /NS
Fully Underwritten Bonds HK$20,148,000 HK$22,690,000
At date of At date of At date of
conversionon conversionon  conversion on At 31
16 July 2008 12 August 2008 29 August 2008  December 2008
The Convertible Notes Atdateofissue R-BENEtR R-BENENR R-EENFNR W-FENETZA
TRRZE RETAS TAAZERAS +t-AZERAS thRZERAM =t-A
Principal amount of TRRRE, A28
the Convertible Notes HK$67,900,000  HK$15,300,000  HK§13,500,000  HK$20,500,000  HK$18,600,000
Share price k& HK$0.12 HKS0.14 HK$0.12 HK$0.08 HK$0.05
Conversion price ki HK$0.10 HK$0.10 HK$0.10 HK$0.10 HK$0.10
Expected lfe (Note (3) BREANE (H20) Jyears 3E  270years 2705 262 years 262F 258 years 258  2.24 years 2245
Risk-free interest rate (Note (b))~ EBBRFIR (H#) 1.549% 2.608% 2.649% 2413% 0.526%
Expected volatilty (Note (c) BERE (hio) 74.23% 86.70% 88.65% 91.27% 126.52%
Fair value of the conversion THARRE N
options embedded in BREZDTE
the Convertible Notes HK$44,109,000  HK$58,400,000  HK$36,300,000  HK$17,100,000 HK$4,800,000
Notes: Kz -
(@) The expected life was the expected remaining life of the (a) EHEXBAEEHEBEERR

respective options.

The risk-free interest rate was determined by reference to
the yield of Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note.

The expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price over the
previous 250 days.

THHH -

b) EBEREBRFNEXDZEZRZEINEES
FRZREMETE

() FEHREHZLERARRE250R
ZBRERBMETE
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31. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
At 1 January 2007 and
31 December 2007

Increase in authorised
share capital

At 31 December 2008

Issued and fully paid:

At 1 January 2007
Exercise of share options
Rights issues

Share placement

At 31 December 2007

Conversion of the Convertible
Notes in July 2008

Conversion of the Convertible
Notes in August 2008

Conversion of the Best Effort
Bonds in December 2008

At 31 December 2008

RTE

R-ZEZE+F—HA—8Bk
—EBLET_f
=+—H

JETERRANIE N

R_ZZN\F+_H
=t—H

BEETREE :
R_EEt$—H—H
TiERE R E

A

[T 4

RZEZT+F+=A
=+—H
RZEZNF+LHA
BEAL &S 2
RZEZENFENA
AR ERR
RZZEZNF+=A
BEHEFBK

R-—ZF\F1+-H
=t—H

31. B&

Number of
ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each

FREE0.10/8 T Amount
ZEBEREE cx-]

Notes HK$'000
B &E FATT
2,500,000,000 250,000

(a) 2,500,000,000 250,000
5,000,000,000 500,000
409,743,660 40,974

(b) 128,788 13
() 389,256,477 38,926
(d) 61,460,000 6,146
860,588,925 86,059

(e) 153,000,000 15,300
(f) 340,000,000 34,000
(9) 136,200,000 13,620
1,489,788,925 148,979
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 R —ZT\F+—-HA=+—H

31. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the Company’s
shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 11
June 2008, the authorised share capital of the Company
was increased from HK$250,000,000 to HK$500,000,000
by the creation of an additional 2,500,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, 128,788 share
options were exercised at a subscription price of HK$0.286
per share, resulting in the issue of 128,788 ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company and giving
a total cash consideration of approximately HK$37,000.

On 26 January 2007, the Company issued 204,871,830
shares at a subscription price of HK$0.30 each in the
capital of the Company, by way of rights issue, in the
proportion of one rights share for every two existing
shares to the shareholders whose names appeared on the
Company’s register at the close of business on 3 January
2007. The gross proceeds of approximately HK$61,462,000
were used for general working capital of the Group. Share
issue expenses of approximately HK$2,992,000 were
set-off against share premium. On 31 August 2007, the
Company issued 184,384,647 shares at a subscription price
of HK$0.38 each in the capital of the Company, by way
of rights issue, in the proportion of three rights shares for
every ten existing shares to the shareholders whose names
appeared on the Company’s register at the close of business
on 8 August 2007. The gross proceeds of approximately
HK$70,066,000 were used for general working capital
of the Group. Share issue expenses of approximately
HK$3,333,000 were set-off against share premium.

31. BRA& (#)
s

(a)

BEARABRER-_ZZENEA
AT+—H8TZREBFAS L
BBEMEERZR KRR ZE
E MR AR £ % 1#23%2,500,000,000
BEREEI10E T ER
% - $250,000,0005 7T 1% i &
500,000,000 7T °

REBEE-_ZZtF+_A=1+—
BIEEE » 128,788 2 2 A AR A
PEREEI0B T ERBK
B 50128,7881n ik i 12 5 % 0.286
BILZRBETERET BR
S REH A37,0008 T

RZZEZELtF—A=-+H K
NE) AR AR R B ES0.30
7 T0 % 17204,871,830/% A8 2 ] i
KbEEh AR _EZT £
F-A-BEXRHERK B
ARRERAMZBREZTER
B IR 5 B (D AT R B8 — BRAEAR AR (D
FT 18 FIB B3 4) 561,462,0008
T DREAEEZ —REEE
£ ° 492,992,000/ 7T 2 f& 10 % 17
THTEBROGEEEE R
E+FENA=Z+—H AR2FMU
AR X E R B ESFR0.38E T
%£17184,384,647 X 7K A B B A8 AR
Wk Hm Bl AER T LFEN
ANBEXRBERBELIERD
AREEM e RESRE TRR
BRHD A RE =R D - BT
BRIBHEEH) A70,066,00078 7T
DREASEEZ —REBEES -
#)3,333,000/8 7T 2 B 19 % 17 X H
Ty ERRR A7 i (BT 8H o
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31. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d)

Pursuant to a placing and subscription agreement dated
13 September 2007, SunCorp Partners Limited agreed
to sell 100,000,000 shares of the Company at a price of
HK$0.39 per share to an independent investor. Pursuant
to the same placing and subscription agreement, SunCorp
Partners Limited subscribed for 61,460,000 new shares of
HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company at HK$0.39
per share, resulting in gross proceeds to the Company
of approximately HK$23,969,000 which were used for
general working capital of the Group. Share issue expenses
of approximately HK$291,000 were set-off against share
premium.

On 16 July 2008, the Convertible Notes with principal
amount of HK$15,300,000 were converted at the
conversion price of HK$0.10 per share, resulting in the
issue of 153,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.

On 12 and 29 August 2008, the Convertible Notes with
aggregate principal amount of HK$34,000,000 were
converted at the conversion price of HK$0.10 per share,
resulting in the issue of 340,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each.

On 18 December 2008, the entire Best Effort Bonds with
principal amount of HK$13,620,000 were converted at
the conversion price of HK$0.10 per share, resulting in the
issue of 136,200,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.

All the new shares issued during the years ended 31
December 2008 and 2007 ranked pari passu with the then
existing shares in all respects.

31. IR (&)

Wit - (&)

d BREBHA-_ZTZTLFAA+Z=
A2 BERRBERHZ  SunCorp
Partners Limitedd = & & #%0.39
BLZEBRRA—BBILEREE L
£ 100,000,0000% A8 22 & f& fn © 1B
BB E kRBEHZE - SunCorp
Partners Limited#&Z & %0.3978 7T 2
B 1% R 8861,460,0000% A 2 7] ik
AR G EEO. 1058 7T 2 # Ik
ARNBRBZMBRBELBEY
23,969,000 7T * B 2 AEAR
SEZ—REEES  £291,000
Btz R ETT S M T E R D &
B o

) RZZEENFLA+T B £
%8 /15,300,000 7T 2 Al # R &
BEERERI0B T ZHRKER
B% + A2 & A It #£7153,000,000
B EE0. 108 T 2 @K -

H RZZEENFNA+ZBR
—+H8  RNEA%EA34,000,000
BILZ BB EEE RS 010
BrzmlRERE  AQRE
% 17340,000,0000% & B% H {80.10
BT T

(9 RZZTEENF+ZATNB "
R4 % 413,620,0008 T 2 & F
BNEHFERER0N0BITZ
BRERERRK  AQFEKEST
136,200,0008% & B% H 80.107% 7T
Z TR o

A
A

ENERZTTLEF
EFEERBEITZH
NE& T E R E KR

Jr_
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fob b — S
) O
21 558 a0
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Share option scheme

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the Company’s
shareholders at the general meeting held on 23 May
2002, the Company adopted a new share option scheme
(the 2002 Scheme"”), under which the Company’s board
of directors may, at its discretion, grant options to eligible
persons (including directors and employees) to subscribe
for the Company’s shares for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and employees.

The exercise price of the share options under the 2002
Scheme is determined by the directors, and must be
at least the higher of: (a) the average of the closing
price of the Company’'s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the relevant date of offer of
the share options; (b) the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the relevant date of offer of the share options,
which must be a business day; and (c) the nominal value
of the Company’s shares.

. URBDAERZRARZRS

R ES &

BEARAKRRN_ZT_FAH
“tZHBTZBRRASLAR
Z—EBERIRER - ADRIRA—
BHBERESE (S22 2F5
8 Bt ARAEFEAHE
REREEBRAL (BRESELE
B)RTBRE URBADAK
- TERNENEREENES -

“ETFREZBREITEE S
EERTE AARUTIRSER
£ (ZERAHEBRER LB HR
IEZXARBRIMEERERS
Bz ARB G FHERTE: (b)F
FERERLDANNBIMEER
BRELZARABRMWTE %
AUARERR  ROXDAKRD
ZEfE -
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 32. URBAERB2RRZR S

(continued)

Share option scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the 2002 Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not in
aggregate exceed 30% of the Company’s shares in issue
from time to time. The total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the share options
granted to any individual under the 2002 Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company (including
cancelled, exercised and outstanding share options) in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant of the share
options must not exceed 1% of the Company’s shares in
issue. The 2002 Scheme will remain in force for a period
of ten years commencing from the date of adoption of
the 2002 Scheme, after which no further share options
shall be granted but the share options which were granted
during the life of the 2002 Scheme may continue to be
exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue and the
provisions of the 2002 Scheme shall in all other respects
remain in full force and effect in respect thereof. Share
options may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the 2002 Scheme at any time during the period as the
board of directors may determine in granting the share
options, but in any event not exceeding ten years from
the date of grant. Share options granted under the 2002
Scheme must be taken up within 30 days of the date of

(%)
BRESS (8

B —FTT_Fat 8 R AR BMERM
HAi AT 8 FrA R b mE R
TR BRE Wﬁ@%T%?ﬁ
Bfhz&=s8 A TRREARA

B E T B EE30% mgiﬁ
BERLBHZEFNT A
AR TERE-_FT_FHER
AR BE ) B A B8 BB R 81 (AT
ATETERE (BREEHE
TTERERITE 2 BIE) BT
ERTRITZBRONDER  TABE
AREEBETRMI% —TF =
FAEBERMBBEST TFEAN
REZ RZBEHMRATEERY
B R _ZT_FHEHA
Rz B AR IR H #1T R
BETATE M_TT 558
ZHREEMAREMCARIESNA
TREN BREAREFERH
8 A HE 5 PR TE < B AR 65 7
RIE-ZT - Fat 8 2GR T AT
& HELHEEEAERABAAE
BAROBHESTFRN - REZ
T _FHEARNCBREARE
HMEHMEA=TRAREN - &R
& ARARRAARBXMNIET

offer. Upon acceptance, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to ERBERBRECNKRE- e
the Company by way of consideration for the grant of the

share option.

At 31 December 2008, the number of shares in respect of R_BEZENE+-_A=+—H 'R 0
which share options could be exercisable under the 2002 BT _FHEAUFIE2ER “j
Scheme was 6,110,858 (2007: 23,625,982), representing BRI 2 R EE A6,110,858 ﬁ

approximately 0.41% (2007: 2.75%) of the Company’s
shares in issue at that date.

B (ZEZE+F :23,625,982/%) -
ERRARRZAZEETRLH
0.41% (ZZEZ+F:2.75%) °
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 32. MR AEBRZNRZRES
(continued) (#8)
The following table discloses the details of the Company’s TRBEEHZ-_ZEZNFE+ A
share options and the movements during the year ended S+—BLEFEAARRZERE
31 December 2008: RERNZEBHES
Qutstanding Qutstanding
Exercise at  Granted  Exerdsed  Forfeited  Expired at
price 1 January during during during during 31 December
Date of grant pershare  Exercise period Notes 2008  theyear  theyear  theyear the year 2008
R=2E/F R=2%/F
-A-f t2AZ1-A
el SROEE  RH M HAGE  FARE  EAOE  FRRM ERER  HAGR
HKS
iy
Directors of 3 March 2003 0377 3 March 2003 to 2 March 2008
the Company ey “ET-F-R-RE-EE)\E=AH (a) 4490744 = - - (4490,744) -
NS
9 December 2003 09999 December 2003 to 8 December 2008
ZSEZETZANA ZRESETANAZCEENETZIAN (b) 1,756,740 - - (1,939,185 (5,817,555) -
16 March 2004 0976 16 March 2004 to 15 March 2009
ZEENEZATA “EENE-BHARE-SENECATER CI—Y YT - - (1,122,660 - 3368058
25 May 2007 0.409 25 May 2007 to 24 May 2012
“E2tERATEA ETrFRACTRAZCE-ZFRAZTRA (d) 1,188,721 = = = - 118877
17,926,955 - - (3061.871) (10308.299) 4,556,785
Other employees of 9 December 2003 0999 9 December 2003 to 8 December 2008
the Company’s “55SET2ANA “RR-ETCANAECEENETZAN (o) 1,086,964 - - (1,086,964 - -
subsidiaries
RATRERTZ
£t
25 May 2007 0.409 25 May 2007 to 24 May 2012
“ERLETATEA ZERtERACTRAE-E-—FRACTAA (o 904,125 - - (167005 - 1554073
10,311,089 - - (8757,016) - 1554013
Total
) 28,238,044 - - (11,818,887) (10308299 6,110,858

Evercisable at the end of the year
RERRATAR 6,110,858

Weighted average exercise price
METHRE HK$0.679 - - HKS0614  HKSOTI8  HKS0.22
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 32. MR AEBRZNRZRES
(continued) (#8)
The following table discloses the details of the Company’s TERRBEBE-_TTLF T A
share options and the movements during the year ended =T RLEFEARRAZ BIRE
= ey .
31 December 2007: FENEEFE
Outstanding Qutstanding
Exercise at  Granted  Exerdsed  Forfeited  Expired at
price 1 January during during during during 31 December
Date of grant pershare  Exercise period Notes 2007 theyear  theyear  theyear the year 2007
RZB8tLE RZB8tLE
-A-A t2B=1-A
ik SROE (89 [iF: mAOE  ERRE  ERGE  EREM EMER  HAGE
HKS
o
Directors of 4 December 2002 0.286 4 December 2002 to 3 December 2007
the Company ZERCELAMA a1 e Sl @ 1913670 - (s - (1,786,09) -
KhuES
3 March 2003 0377 3 March 2003 to 2 March 2008
e CRE-E-fZRECT3/\F2ACH ) 4,490,744 - - - - 449074
9 December 2003 0.999 9 December 2003 to 8 December 2008
“EE=E2ANA ET-Et-RAREZZENETZANA o) 7,756,740 - - - - 1,715,740
16 March 2004 0.976 16 March 2004 to 15 March 2009
“EIME=ATAA “EEME=RT/BE-EENE-ATEA a) 4,490,744 - - - - 4,490,744
25 May 2007 0409 25 May 2007 to 24 May 2012
“2EtERA=TRA “EEERA-TRAZ-E-—FRAZTRA (d) -1 - - - 118870

18651898 1188727  (127,578) (1,786,092) 17,926,955

Other employees of 4 December 2002 0.286 4 December 2002 to 3 December 2007
the Company’s “§3-F2ARA e 2 o1 o S 2l - @) 20412 - - - 04 -
subsidiaries
KAFMBAFZ 9 December 2003 0999 9 December 2003 1o 8 December 2008
AfiEs ZEESETCANA RR-ETCANRE-ERNETANA (b) 1,086,964 - - - - 1,086,964
18 October 2004 2.058 18 April 2005 to 17 October 2009
Z2EMETATIA ZITREMAT/\RECTENETA TR 4 1,861,758 - - (1861,758) - -
25 May 2007 0409 25May 2007 to 24 May 2012
ZTEtERAZTEA RtERACTRAZCS-ZERAZTRA (d) - 1135291 - (0133,166) - 9415
2969134 11,357,291 - (3994924)  (20412) 10,311,089
Total
) 21621032 12546018 (127578) (3.994,924) (1,806,504) 28,238,044
Evercisable at the end of the year
REERTTAE 13,625,982

Weighted average exercise price
METHRR HKSO893  HKS0.409  HK90.286  HKSTIT7  HKS0286  HKSO.679
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 R —ZT\F+—-HA=+—H

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Notes:

(@) The share options may be exercised at any time from the
date of grant to their fifth anniversary of the date of grant.

(b) Share options granted are fully vested at the date of grant.
The share options granted to directors of the Company may
be exercised at any time from the date of grant to the fifth
anniversary of the date of grant. The share options granted
to employees (other than directors) are exercisable subject
to (i) up to 50% of the share options are exercisable from 9
December 2003 to 8 December 2004; and (ii) all remaining
share options are exercisable from 9 December 2004 to 8
December 2008.

(c) The share options are exercisable subject to (i) up to 50%
of the share options are exercisable from 18 April 2005 to
17 October 2005; and (ii) all remaining share options are
exercisable from 18 October 2005 to 17 October 2009.

(d) The share options are exercisable subject to (i) up to 50%
of the share options are exercisable from 25 May 2007
to 24 May 2008; and (ii) all remaining share options are
exercisable from 25 May 2008 to 24 May 2012.

In respect of the share options exercised during the
year ended 31 December 2007, the weighted average
share price immediately before the dates of exercise was
HK$0.28.

32 LR AEBRZARZRS
(&)
B -

@ BRETHARLAHEEREA
HMERBF 2 ERRREATTE -

b) BT<BRERNRLAHBZER
B-XTARAIERTZBRER
AREAHEEREAHERE
FUEZEABRATE RTE
BESUINZEREZTER
REBATRS - (V&BE50% 28
BEATm-_FE=F+-ANA
BE_TTME+ - ANBLEH
RIMATEE  R(ii)ek T 7 A 1B A 2
AR-ZTMFEF-_ANRER
“EFNFEFTANBLBHEA
7l -

(0 BEREZITEE JMT@% U
EHL%%Z%W%TE
ﬂﬁ@ﬂ+ﬂﬂii_77£¢
+A+tHIEBHEATE: Kii)
BT AEEREATH_-_STAF
+A+NBRE-_ZTZAETA
++ B IE B ATTE o

(d) BREZITEBZIATRES : ()
?Ei%%Z%k%Tﬁ TE
+ERA-THBRE-_ZEN
FRA-THBIFBHERTE:

m%TWﬁ%h%Tﬁ 37
NFREAZTHBERE ==
iﬁﬂ:+@5t%ﬁmﬁﬁ

REE-_ZTLHET_A=1—
AEFEATEZBRERER
17128 B Al fn#E-F oA (ER0.28
BT °
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the estimated
fair value of the share options granted on 25 May 2007
was approximately HK$4,342,000. The fair value was
calculated using the binomial model. The inputs into the
model were as follows:

. URBDAERZRARZRS
()
Wiz - (&)

REE-_ZEELF+-_A=1+—
BLEtEE R-_ZEZTLt&HA
“Tt+RAREEREZAET AT
BE#) A4,342,0008 7T A FE TS
NZBEAERGFTE - RAZERL

ZEEMT

Grant date share price R AHZKRE HK$0.411
Exercise price (before adjustment B (R ERIELFE)

for the rights issue) HK$0.405
Expected life T8 HIA AR Five years 54
Expected volatility 8 HA K 1R 94.67%
Risk-free interest rate 2 [ o ) 4.59%
Dividend yield % 8% 0%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous
360 days prior to the date of grant. The expected life was
the life of the share option from the date of grant. The
risk-free interest rate was determined by reference to the
yield of Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note.

The Group recognised total equity-settled share-based
payment expense of approximately HK$2,888,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2007 in relation to the share
options granted by the Company.

FRHDRE LA B AT 8 %3608
ARAIBREZAEREBE B
BRELERERRABERELR
R EE AT 2 B o &
KT2EFRINEEERRZU
# M EE °

AEBEHE-_ZZTLtF+ A
ST-HLEFE BREARAAREZ
BRERRURAEEL ARN A
E 23 H 458 492,888,000
BT o
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33. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/LIABILITIES 3. IEEMRIE (BE) A

The following are the major deferred tax (assets)/liabilities UTARAFEERBAEFERR
recognised and movements thereon during the current FTREEHB(BE) ABEREE
and prior years: &)

Accelerated
tax deduction

N
W
(@]

FRAEEERAHF

Suncorp Technologies Limited

Accelerated on product
tax development Tax
depreciation expenditure losses Total
ERREXLZ
MEREHE BB WEBE -
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR THER THT
At 1 January 2007 R-TZ+E-A-H 46 13,752 (13,798) -
(Credit)/charge to EWEQ TEMEE
consolidated income (3T A) /30
statement for the year (46) (1,517) 1,563 -
At 31 December 2007 RZZZ+E+-A=1-H - 12,235 (12,235) -
(Credit)/charge to FARGENER
consolidated income GEA) /Hk
statement for the year - (12,235) 12,235 -

At 31 December 2008 RZZF\E+-A=+-AH -
At 31 December 2008, the Group had unused tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$209,186,000
(2007: HK$162,526,000) available for offset against
future profits that may be carried forward indefinitely. At
31 December 2008, the Group also had unused tax losses
arising in the PRC of approximately HK$1,800,000 that
will expire in one to five years for offset against future
taxable profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the unused tax losses at 31 December 2008
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
At 31 December 2007, a deferred tax asset had been
recognised in respect of unused tax losses to the extent of
approximately HK$69,914,000. No deferred tax asset had
been recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses of
approximately HK$92,612,000 due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams.

RZZEZNFEF+ZA=+—H" 'K
SEREEAZADARBEEEN
%5209,186,0008 L (ZE T L F :
162,526,000 70) + A] fit A {E 4K 4
AR aHmAERHLEE N =T
ENFE+_A=Z+—8 A&£E
BEREFBEZABAREBENA
1,800,000/ 7T - A £ A {E 4K 85 R 2K
HERMER—ERAFAEEH - AR
R A 2 AR FER - [ A
B_ETN\F+ZA=+—HZR
PAVEEERRECHBEE -
RZZEZ+FE+A=+—H'B
E 5 #969,914,000/8 7T 2 A ) A Bt
HEBBERBECHEELEE - AR K
R AR 2 AR TR A It 3 B
# T #792,612,0005% 7T 1 R IR T %
HEE o
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34. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

35.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group
entered into finance lease arrangements in respect of
the acquisition of property, plant and equipment with
a total capital value at the inception of the leases of
approximately HK$193,000.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Minimum lease payments paid FARBEEEHERMZ

under operating leases =EHAE :
during the year:
— Premises -

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of rented premises which fall
due as follows:

3. FEHFBERS
REZE-_ZTZ+F+-_A=+—H
IHEE AEERABARKESR
AN EE49193,00008 T 2 M E - W
ERREBEIVRERASTH -

35, KEHERE

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
1,147 3,567

REER AREREENERT
SIFEMBB A HBELEHEE
BEARZERSALEWT :

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

Within one year —FR 838 2,955
In the second to fifth F_EZERF (BEEEMTF)

years inclusive 2,564 8,048

Over five years AR F 1,153 7,549

4,555 18,552
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 R —ZZN\F+-F=+—8H

36.

37.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure in respect of  FLUKEE &
acquisition of plant and Hez BETA
machinery contracted for BARREE MBI
but not provided in the BB BEARX
consolidated financial
statements

Capital expenditure in respect of ~ FUEEET
acquisition of intangible assets BEZBAA
contracted for but not provided — {BRRERA BT
in the consolidated financial mRBEL
statements BARX

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

On 28 February 2007, the Company was served with an
Amended Writ issued and filed by Uniden Corporation
("Uniden”) and Uniden Hong Kong Limited (“Uniden
HK") on 1 February 2007 against the Company, SunCorp
Partners Limited and certain of the Company’s existing and
former directors, alleging that certain misrepresentations
had been made by the Company and certain of its
existing and former directors, and that the Company had
breached the warranties of the subscription agreement,
and the terms of the business alliance agreement and
the master production agreement. On the basis of these
allegations, Uniden sought, inter alia, (i) a recession of
the subscription agreement, pursuant to which Uniden
HK acquired 82,000,000 new shares in the capital of the
Company, and the consequential return of the relevant
subscription money of approximately HK$143,500,000; (ii)
damages for misrepresentation or breach of warranty; (iii)
damages for breach of the business alliance agreement
and the master production agreement; and (iv) the legal
costs of this action, plus interest.

36.

37.

BRAE
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHERT TRET
- 1,061
- 2,449
HAREE

RZEE+E-_A-+NH K
X A # #EUniden Corporation
([Uniden ) KUniden Hong Kong
Limited ([ Uniden HK ) R =& &
tHFZA—HMRARAF - SunCorp
Partners Limited R AR A& THE
RAAESHLRGFEILBIE
L EEARRREAETRERA
FERELETRERL  URRE
RAEERRERBELRERE
EBBEBEREEGRE &N -
HERNZEHEE  UnidenESk (B4
#7%) () $5 8 BUniden HKUK BB
82,000,000/% A8 A &) f& 7 2 37 A%
7 2 3R B8 1 & 10 3R 121 4R B SR BB R K
#]143,500,0007% 7T ; (ii)#t Kk B &
Mok RIRBIRMBEEE : (ipt
EREERBHEREEBHER
HIEZEE R(iv)EBE I EEARTT
B rRBRURFIE
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38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BB ®RXMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 R=—ZZ\&F+—-A=+—H

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

On 6 February 2007 and 20 March 2007, the Company
issued announcements in relation to these legal
proceedings and the termination by the Company of the
business alliance agreement and the master production
agreement. The directors of the Company strongly refute
and intend to vigorously contest the allegations made by
Uniden and Uniden HK, and are of the opinion, having
taken legal advice, that the action can be successfully
defended.

On 2 August 2007, the Company served a defense and a
counterclaim against Uniden and Uniden HK for damages
of approximately HK$354,000,000 (plus interest) based
on the breaches by Uniden and Uniden HK of the terms
of the master production agreement and the business
alliance agreement. Uniden served its reply and defence to
the counterclaim on 13 November 2007. Up to the date
of approval of these consolidated financial statements,
the Court has not yet laid down a timetable for the next
stages of the proceedings.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of trustees. The Group contributes
5% of relevant payroll costs to the scheme, which
contribution is matched by employees.

In accordance with the relevant rules and regulations in
other countries in which the Group operates, the Group
is required to operate defined contribution schemes
managed by the relevant jurisdictions and to make
contributions for its eligible employees. The contribution
borne by the Group is calculated according to the
regulations stated by the relevant jurisdictions.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2008 of
approximately HK$1,092,000 (2007: HK$612,000)
represents contributions payable to the above schemes by
the Group.

37.

38.

FAREE @

RZEZLtF-_AAAR-_ZEZL
F=ZAZ+H ARAREFTEE
FARARARZAEEERE
REEBBBEELAM ANABE
FRIURBERBEEBR A Unden &
Uniden HKIR Hi 2 61 - W B EX
FEERERBREMEETHAE
DRIEAE

RZZEZTLFNHAZR A2
B #EUniden & Uniden HKE R &
EBEGERBEBRBHBRE KR
i i = $F ¥ Uniden & Uniden HK
IMBEERRBR  RREBEER
{& #49354,000,0007%8 7T (B F| 8) o
UnidenRZEZ+F+—A+=H
REHHRARZEDERNMAEE -
BEEAGEMBHRREREZA
i EBR AT T —REERAFL
RREX o

R K48 R Er 8

ARERMERBGERERRER
BHMERAEREE - AT EER
AEBEEIDFRERE  YAET
ANEBZEESHTFE AEERZ
ArElfEHS %z H e BER
ZHRBE D LAAR -

REAKELEMEZHBER
HERARED  AEEARLA
HBAREERERE 2 AT H”KG
2 UHESEREERELMER
A& BASE 2 SR TR AR BDA
BEIERIEE

RBEZZENF+ZA=+—H
HFEEZGRANERPRR ALY
H#)41,002,0008 L (ZEFLF:
612,000 L) * HAKEH Filst
B 2R o
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 R —ZZN\F+-F=+—8H

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39.

During the year, the Group entered into the following

significant transactions with related parties:

Related parties Nature of transactions

BEAL REHE

Guo Wei - a jointly Purchase of goods by the Group
controlled entity AEEREEEm

BF -4 AT

Sale of equipment by the Group
AEEHERE

Financial guarantee given by the Group to
banks for credit facilities utilised
AEEREBHA 2 EERBMBITRE

TRER
Sale of goods by the Group
AEBELEEm
Uniden - a substantial Purchase of goods by the Group
shareholder AEEREEEM

Uniden - ZERE

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management personnel of the
Group during the year was as follows:

Short-term benefits 2 AR A
Post-employment benefits BER 218 A
Share-based payments VARG 1 R ETE 2 (T3K

BMEALRS
FRAEEEBEATETZE
e UM
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET
150,307 987,410
13,700 -
- 950
36,525 -
- 21,116
EEES 2 HH

AEEEEEENFAZHMMT :

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
3,188 5,831
38 62

- 330

3,226 6,223




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUBSIDIARIES

REMBRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 R=—ZZ\&F+—-A=+—H

40. DECONSOLIDATION OF WINDING-UP

On 15 December 2008, a winding-up order was granted
by the court against Suncorp Industrial Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group. In addition, a number of
inactive subsidiaries of the Group were either dissolved or
put into liquidation during the year ended 31 December
2008. Accordingly, the Group had deconsolidated these
subsidiaries as the directors of the Company considered
that the Group’s control over these subsidiaries had been
lost. The assets and liabilities of these subsidiaries at the
respective dates of deconsolidation were as follows:

Assets and liabilities deconsolidated:
Property, plant and equipment
Inventories

Trade, bills and other receivables
Bank balances and cash

Trade and other payables

Amounts due to minority shareholders

Minority interests

Release of translation reserve

Net gain on deconsolidation of
winding-up subsidiaries

Total consideration satisfied by cash

Net cash outflow arising from
deconsolidation of winding-up
subsidiaries:

Cash consideration received

Bank balances and cash disposed of

40. TBEFBEEMBRARAGRS

A Bk

—EENF+_HA+HAB  ERAE
SRAEEZ2EMBRANESR
RERRARBR - WH AEES
AAERCHMEBRARBE_ZE
NETZA=1T—BILFEARRA
FER -ARAEERA AEHE
ERERZEMB DA 212 H# -
At T BRZENBAREAA
o SMBRARNERE T BER
AARBHZEERARNT

2008
HK$'000
FET
TBEEAERZEERERE
ME - BE REE 889
FE 56,763
RWESER  BRUEENERKGKIA 1,433
BITER KRS 1,497
e E ZRA K E A e B (492,697)
S LSRR FRIB (798)
(432,913)
VERRE R (109)
BB E G 2,694
TEEEENBARGEARZ
Y25 % 5E 430,328
UReS 2z B8RE -
TEEERHBARGAEARELZ
Bemm F8
BURERZRERE -
BEHEZRTERNIES (1,497)
(1,497)
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41. BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION OF THE M. FRRAIZEEEBERER
COMPANY
Balance sheet information of the Company at the balance ARaNEERZEEARREN
sheet date includes: B
2008 2007
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B E FTER FET
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries RBARZIELTHRE - -
Deposits and prepayments Be RERFIA 1,172 175
Tax recoverable AU Bl i 18 3 =
Bank balances and cash BITHEHBIIRE 3,678 137
Total assets BEE 4,853 312
Deposits received and Bl KEER
accrued charges 29,496 45,740
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN NG € (a) 3 132
Amounts due to directors ADEE ¢ (a) 8,743 9,675
Financial guarantee contracts EREREL - 456
Conversion options embedded RBRERZRZ
in convertible loan notes WA AR 27,490 -
Convertible loan notes TBRRERER 38,830 -
Total liabilities wak 104,562 56,003
Net liabilities FEE (99,709) (55,691)
Capital and reserves AR e RE
Share capital AR 148,979 86,059
Reserves fEE (b) (248,688) (141,750)
Total equity MR (99,709) (55,691)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BB ®RXMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 R=—ZZ\&F+—-A=+—H

41. BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

Notes:

(a)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the underlying net assets of the
subsidiaries at the date on which they were acquired by
the Company and the nominal value of the share capital
issued by the Company as consideration for the acquisition

M EARFZEERERER @

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

demand.

Details of changes in reserves of the Company are as

follows:

At 1 January 2007

Rights issues
Share placement
Share issue expenses
Exercise of share options
Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments
Forfeiture of vested
share options
Loss for the year

At 31 December 2007

Issue of shares upon
conversion of convertible
loan notes

Forfeiture of vested
share options

Loss for the year

At 31 December 2008

R-BTLE
~A—H

ﬂ{J'L

RERD

B BHX
e
BRARALELY
B BERZ 113
pUGEE P

<EE

AEEER

254

=t
B o - ||
58 m Al

o S+ i
55 B |
= §F D

sgdomy |1

52 |1 A
o
e

RUEFEZFEIE
AEEER

R-EENF
+-A=+-H

et -

@ BABHFEA/EEA RERAR
2

KBNS EE o

(b) ARFEEZS

AEMT

Share

Share  Contributed option Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
R a8 BARR BRERE ZitER ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TR
171,238 80,851 1,618 (301,629) (47,922)
92,602 - - - 92,602
17,823 - - - 17,823
(6,616) - - - (6,616)
24 - - - 24
- - 2,888 - 2,888
- - (1,618) 1,618 -
- - - (200,549) (200,549)
275,071 80,851 2,888 (500,560) (141,750)
4,875 - - - 4,875
- - (792) 792 -
- - - (111,813) (111,813)
279,946 80,851 2,096 (611,581) (248,688)

at the time of a group reorganisation in a previous year.

KRB A BERIE AN R A BB A
BRRAEERBAEAZERNEE
FE BARRE-BEFEET
CEEARRBEMRTERKE

ZBEAEEME CEHE -
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 2. ARTETEMBLTFE
OF THE COMPANY
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully ~ Attributable equity
establishment  Form of paid share capital/ interest indirectly
Name of subsidiary and operation  legal entity  registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
HMAL/ R BETRAR ARAEEREZ
WEARER REEHE AERRFA B/ ERER L RAER TERHE
2008 2007
HB Electronics (China) Limited British Virgin Limited US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
HEET (TE) BRAR Islands company ordinary share REER
EERRES  ERAA LERIET
MONDIAL Communications Hong Kong Limited HK$2 100% 100%  Research, development and
Limited BE company ordinary shares marketing of telephones
BERBABRAR BRAT LERIBT and related equipment
0% ERREESHER
RERE
SunCorp Communications Limited  Hong Kong Limited HK$775,000 100% 100%  Trading of telephones
SERAARAH B company ordinary shares E&E;
ARAH HK$225,000
non-voting
deferred shares
(Note (i))
LAk
775,000/ 7
ERERELR
225,000/ 7T
(Wrz())
SunCorp Information Hong Kong Limited HK$2 100% 100%  Trading of telephones
Technologies (Asia) Limited B company ordinary shares EBE;
HEEARR (EH)BRAR BRAR LaRET
Meizhou Guo Wei Electronics PRC Wholly foreign HK$42,000,000  100% 100%  Manufacturing of telephones
Company Limited (Formerly i owned registered capital HEEE
shown as “Meizhou Guo Wei enterprise AEA
SunCorp Electronics IEBELSE 42,000,000

Company Limited”)

BNEREFAERAR
(ZRSIAIEMEIFHNEE T
ARAR])



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BB ®RXMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 R=—ZZ\&F+—-A=+—H

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 42. ZRAEEWE R AFE @)
OF THE COMPANY (continued)
Notes: B -
(i) The deferred shares practically carry no rights to dividends () BEBRERETIMBEEZEREZ
or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general RN MEERKDRBTEZAEE
meeting or to participate in any distribution on winding up. BZEMBRERAS 2 BMN L E

ZERERRELERE HHE
BB DK

(i) None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at (i) RELBINEATWER &
the end of the year, or at any time during the year. MEBAREERTENERES o
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, EEAE RN AEEZHE
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the NREHAEB  ¥EREEELET
results or assets of the Group. To give details of other EXE - KESZER JIHEM
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result MEBRARZHEERNIE -

in particulars of excessive length.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Bt % BB
RESULTS ES
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-ZA=1T—-HLEE
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAET TAET THER
(restated)
(Z3l)
(Note)
(Kt:z)
Revenue g 2,338,529 2,001,007 1,765,156 1,116,279 219,863
Profit/(loss) for the AEERFH,/
year (E18) 95,806 7,537  (349,638)  (385,864) 78,813
Attributable to : THIA LR -
Equity holders of ARBIBRAFEA
the Company 95,726 7,608 (349,592) (385,809) 78,813
Minority interests DY R R 80 (71) (46) (55) -
95,806 7,537 (349,638) (385,864) 78,813
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAR
As at 31 December
BW+=-—AR=+-—H
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAET THER
Total assets BEE 665,536 860,129 585,609 249,150 20,009
Total liabilities maff (482,045) (691,013) (624,769) (522,652)  (143,523)
Net assets/(liabilities) FEE/(BfF) 183,491 169,116 (39,160)  (273,502)  (123,514)
Equity attributable to AR B A
equity holders B ARG
of the Company B 183,210 168,906 (39,324) (273,611)  (123,514)
Minority interests DR R ER 281 210 164 109 -
183,491 169,116 (39,160) (273,502)  (123,514)
Note: Figures have been restated to recognise retrospectively for the Wi WEHFTELES  NBPER=ZZ
equity-settled share-based payments in relation to the share EF+—PALtBEEREMR_ZZ
options granted after 7 November 2002 and had not yet been hE-A-BHAGEZBRENE

vested on 1 January 2005. A DA BR AR 45 B 00 PARR 10 75 58 2 193K o
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